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'' Total Customer Satisfaction Shall Be Our Prime Corporate Objective.

We Shall Achieve This Through Inculcating Team Spirit In 

Every Member Of The Company. 

The Spirit Of Excellence Is The Corner Stone Of All We Do. 

Quality With Us Is A Way Of Life. 

Value For Money To The Customer, Continuous Improvement 

And Moving Towards Zero Defect Is Our Consistent Endeavour. 

We Shall Continually Meet Statutory & Legal Requirement 

And Interested Party Requirement Along With Customer Requirement 
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Managing Director 
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NOTICE 

46th Annual General Meeting 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 46th Annual General Meeting ('AGM') of the Members of Rapicut Carbides Limited 
('Company') will be held on Friday, September 22, 2023 at 12.00 P.M.IST through Video Conferencing (VC) facility or Other 
Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following businesses: 

Ordinary Business 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year ended on that date, along with reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Shruti A. Gami (DIN:08764442), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
herself for re-.appointment.

Special Business: 

3. Re-Appointment of Shri. Atul Ravindra Garg (DIN: 07148330) as an Independent Director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'J read with Schedule IV thereto and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 and applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") (including any statutory modification(s) or re
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance with Articles of Association of the Company and any
other/aw as maybe applicable, Shri. Atul Ravindra Garg (DIN: 07148330), who was appointed as Independent Director
and who holds office up to February 06, 2024, on expiry of his first term of appointment as an Independent Director of
the Company, in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the A ct from a
Member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, and who has submitted a declaration confirming that he
meets the criteria of independence as specified in the Act and Listing Regulations and who is eligible for re-appointment
and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, be and is hereby reappointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to ret;re by rotation, for a second term of 5 (Five) consecutive years
commencing from February 07, 2024,up to February 06, 2029."

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and
are hereby jo(nt/y and severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered
expedient to give effect to this resolution. "

4. Appointment of Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia (DIN: 06522711) as an Independent Director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152, 161 read with Schedule IV and any other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of

Directors) Rules, 2014, and applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations'?, (including any statutory modifications or re

enactment thereof for the time being in force) and in accordance with Articles of Association of the Company and any

other law as may be applicable, Shri. Nrupang Bhumitra Dholakia (DIN: 06522711), who has been appointed as an

Additional Director, in the capacity of Non-Executive & Independent Director of the Company with effect from 1st June,

2023, pursuant to Section 161 (1) of the Act and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and

whose term of office expires at this Annual General Meeting ( A GM) and who has submitted a declaration confirming that
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he meets the criteria of independence as specified in the Act and Listing Regulations and who is eligible forappoirrfment 

and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in wrffing under Sectron 160 of the Act, from a member, 

proposing his candidature for the office of Director. be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 

Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from 1st June, 2023 up to 30th May, 2028, 

whose period of office will not be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation." 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 

jointly and severaf/y authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered expedient to give effect to 

this resolution. 1
' 

5. Revision in Remuneration of Shri. Abhishek V. Gami (DIN: 07570948), Managing Director of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197, 198, 203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the

Companies Act, 2013, (''Act'J read with Schedule V of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Regulation 17(6)(e) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ("SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015'J and other applicable

regulations, if any, of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modification(s) & re-enactment thereof

for the time being in force, as recommended by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of

the Company, subject to approval of the concerned authorities, if required, the consent of the members, be and is

hereby accorded for revision of remuneration of Shri. Abhishek V, Gami (DIN: 07570948) Managing Director. effective

from 1st July, 2023, for the remaining period of his tenure i.e. uptill 30th June, 2025, on the remuneration and other terms

and condffions as detailed hereunder.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby

jointly and severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered expedient to give effect to

this resolution."

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION:

Remuneration:

Gross Salary including Basic Salary, Perquisites, and other allowances/ benefits up to Rs. 64 Lakh per annum. (CTC)
as may be decided by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Managing Director is not eligible for Sitting Fees for
attending the Board Meeting.

Perquisites and allowances:

(a) Housing: Company leased Housing Accommodation or House Rent Allowance as per the Rules of the Company.

(b) Leave Travel Concession for self and family as per the Rules of the Company.

(c) Medical Reimbursement, Medical Insurance and Personal Accident Insurance as per the Rules of the Company.

(d) Conveyance as per the Rules of the Company.

( e) Free Telephone Facility at the residence as per the Rules of the Company.

(f) Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Gratuity Fund as per the Rules of the Company.

(g) Leave as per the Rules of the Company.

(h) Use of Car: Useofchauffeurdriven Companycarforofficial purpose.

(I) Reimbursement of Expenses: Reimbursement of expenses incurred during the official business of the Company in
accordance with the rules of the Company.

U) Other Perquisites, allowances, benefits and amenities as per the service rules of the Company as applicable from
time to time.
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Commission: 

Shri. Abhishek V, Gami shall also be paid Commission, in addition to Salary, Perquisites, Allowances, calculated with 

reference to Net Profits of the Company in a particular Financial Year, as may be determined by the Board of Directors 

of the Company at the end of each Financial Year not exceeding 1 % of the Net Profits of the Company for the respective 

Financial Year, subject to overall ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Act. 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of absence or inadequacy of profits in any Financial Year during the tenure 

of Shri. Abhishek V. Gami as a Managing Director, the remuneration specified above shall be paid and allowed to Shri. 

Abhishek V. Gami, as minimum remuneration for such Financial Year." 

6. Payment of commission to the Directors (other than the Managing Director and Whole time Director)

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a SPECIAL

RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 197, 198 and other applicable provisions, if any; of the Companies Act, 2013,

the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the payment of commission to the Directors (other than the

Managing Director and Whole time Director) not exceeding 1% (one percent) per annum of the net profits of the

Company calculated in accordance with the provisions of the said Act, such commission being divisible amongst the

aforesaid Directors, in such proportion and in such manner as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the

Company for a period of five financial year commencing from the financ;af year ending 31"' March, 2023."

Registered Office: 

119, GIDC Industrial Area, 

Ankleshwar - 393002, 

Gujarat, India. 

Place: Ankleshwar 

Date: August 05, 2023 
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By the Order of the Board 

Rapicut Carbides Limited 

Komal P. Soni 

Company Secretary 

M.No.:A66843



NOTES 

1 . The Min istry of Corporate Affa irs ( 'MCA' ) has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 , read with
General C i rcu lar No. 1 4/2020 dated 8th April , 2020, General Circu lar No. 1 7/2020 dated 1 3th April , 2020, General 
Circu lar No. 02/2021 dated 1 3th January, 202 1 , General Circular No. 1 9/2021  dated 8th December, 2021 , General 
Circu lar No. 21/202 1 dated 1 4th December, 202 1 , General Circular No.  2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and General 
Circu lar No. 1 0/2022 dated December 28, 2022 (col lectively referred to as 'MCA Circula rs') and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of I ndia vide its Circu lar no .  SEB I/H O/CFD/CMD 1 /CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 1 2, 2020 , read with 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 1 3th May, 2022 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-
2/P/C IR/2023/4 dated January 05, 2023 (col lectively referred to as 'SEBI  Circula rs') permitted the Companies for 
hold ing of the Annual General Meetings through Video Conferencing ( 'VC') faci l ity or other aud io visual means 
( 'OAVM' ) , without the physica l presence of the Members at a common venue . In compl iance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 20 1 3  ( 'Act') , Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obl igations and Disclosure 
Requ i rements) Regu lations, 201 5 ('SEB I  List i ng Regulations, 20 1 5' ) and MCA Circu lars, the 46th AGM of the 
Company wil l  be held through VC/OAVM on Friday, September 22 , 2023 at 1 2.00 P.M .  ( 1ST). The deemed venue for the 
46th AGM wi l l  be 1 1 9, GI DC Industrial Area , Ankleshwar - 393002, Gujarat, I nd ia .  Hence , Members can attend and 
participate in the ensuingAGM through VC/OAVM. 

2 . I n  Compliance with the MCA and SEB I  C ircu lars,the Notice of the 46th AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is 
being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / 
Depositories . Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will a lso be avai lable on the Company's website at 
www.rapicutcarbides.com , website of Stock Exchange i .e .  SSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of 
Central Depository Services ( I ndia) Limited at www.evoting india .com.  

3 .  Since th is AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, pursuant to MCA Circulars, physica l attendance of the Members has 
been dispensed with . Accordingly, the faci l ity for appointment of proxies by the Members wi l l  not be available 
for theAGM. Hence the Proxy form, Attendance Sl ip and Route Map are not annexed to th is Notice. 

4 . Corporate Members intend ing to authorise their representatives pursuant to Section 1 1 3  of the Act, to attend the AGM 
through VC/OAVM are requested to send a Certified Copy of the Board Resol ution / Authorization Letter to the 
Company by e�mai l  at investors@rapicutcarbides.com . 

5 .  Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM wi l l be  counted for the pu rpose o f  ascertaining the quorum under 
Section 1 03 of the Act. 

6 .  The details o f  the Di rectors seeking appointment / re-appointment a t  the AGM , pursuant t o  the provisions of Regu lation 
36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 201 5 and para 1 .2 .5  of the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2) 
and other appl icable provisions a re provided in Annexure -A to th is Notice. 

7 .  All documents referred to i n  the Notice wi l l  also be  ava ilable electron ica l ly for inspection without any fee  by the 
Members from the date of circu lation of th is Notice up to the date of AGM.  Members seeking to inspect such documents 
can send a request from their registered Emai l  Id mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID / Folio No. ,  PAN , Mobi le 
No. to the Company at investors@rapicutcarbides.com 

8. As per Regulation 40 of the SEB I  Listing Regulations, 20 1 5 , as amended , secu rities of Listed Compan ies can be
transferred only in  dematerial ised form . With effect from January 24 , 2022 , transmission or transposition of secu rities
held i n  physical or dematerial ized form sha l l  be effected on ly in demateria l ized form. In view of th is and to el iminate all
risks associated with physical  shares and for ease of portfol io Management, Members holding shares in physical form
are requested to consider converting their hold ings to demateria l ised form . Members can contact the Company's
Registrar and Transfer Agent, Lihk  l nt lme Ind ia Private Limited at rnt . hel pdesk@linkintime.co. i n  for assistance in this
regard .

9 .  Members a re requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal add ress , e-mail address,
telephone/mobile numbers ,  PAN ,  registration of nomination, power of attorney registration , Bank Mandate detai ls ,  etc.
to thei r Depository Participants (DP) in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar and Transfer
Agent at rnt.helpdesk@linki ntime.co. in in case the shares are held i n  physica l form, quoti ng their fol io number. Further,
Members may note that Securities and Exchange Board of India ( 'SEB I ') has mandated the submission of PAN by
every participant in the secu rities market.
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1 0 . As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the faci l ity for making nomination is avai lable for the Members in respect 
of the shares held by them. Membe rs who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same 
by submitting Form No. SH- 1 3. If a Member desires to cancel the earl ier nomination and record a fresh nominat1on ,  
he{she may submit the same in Form No. SH-1 4.  The said forms can be down loaded from the Registrar and Transfer 
Agent's website at www.l inkintime. in under 'Down loads' section . Members are requested to submit the said form to 
their OP i n  case the shares are held i n  electronic form and to the Registrar at rnt.helpdesk@l inkintime.co. in i n  case the 
shares are held in physical form , quoti ng their fol io number. 

1 1 .  To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due d i l igence and notify the Company of any 
change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible . Members are a lso advised not to leave their  demat 
accouht(s) dormant for long . Periodic Statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings 
should be verified from time to time . 

1 2. The Company has uploaded the information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends of the Financial Years 201 5-20 1 6  to 
201 8-20 1 9  under "Investor Section" on the website of the Company viz. https ://www.rapicutcarbides.com I

Unclaimed_&_Unpaid_Dividend . html .Members who have not claimed d ividend for previous year(s) are requested to 
claim the same by approachi ng the Company or Reg istrar and Transfer Agent. 

1 3 . I n  terms of Section 1 24 of the Act. al l  Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend for the Financia l Year ended March 3 1 , 20 1 6  wi l l  
be  transferred to  the J rwestor Education and Protection Fund ( I EPF) set up by  the Government u/s 1 25 of  the  Act, with in  
30 days from the due date Le .November 01 , 2023, and thereafter, no claim sha l l  l ie  against the Company in respect of 
the said unpaid or unclaimed amount. Shareholders may approach IEPF Authority for claiming the Dividend 
transferred to I nvestor Education and Protection Fund and follow the procedure as per Rule 7 of I EPF (Accounting,  
Aud it, Transfer and Refund )  Ru les, 201 6 (hereinafter referred as " IEPF RUies" )  for claiming Unpaid Dividend . 

As per Section 1 24 (6) of the Act, read with the IEPF Ru les as amended , al l the shares in respect of which d ividend has 
remained unpaid / unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more are required to be transferred to IEPF Demat 
Account. The Company had sent notice through Reg istered Post to all the members whose Dividends are lying 
unpaid/unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more . Members are requested to claim the same. In case the
dividends are not claimed , necessary steps wi l l  be i n itiated by the Company for transfer of shares to I EPF without
further notice. Please note that no claim shal l He against the Company i n  respect of the shares so transferred to IEPF.

I n  the event of transfer of sha res and the unclaimed dividends to IEPF. members are entitled to claim the same from 
IEPF by submitting an on l ine appl ication in the prescribed Web based Form IEPF-5 avai lable on the website 
www.iepf.gov. in and sending a physical copy of the same duly signed to the Company along with the requisite 
documents enumerated in the Form IEPF-5 ,  

14 .  Pursuant to the provisions o f  Section 1 08 o f  the Companies Act, 201 3, read with Rule 20  o f  the Companies 
(Management and Adm inistration) Rules, 201 4, (as amended) ,  and Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listi ng Regul•ations, 
20 1' 5, (as amended ), and MCA Circu lars, the Company fs providi ng faci l ity of remote e-voting to its Members i n  respect 
of the businesses to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 
Central Depository Services ( Ind ia) Limited (CDSL) for faci l itat ing voting th rough electronic means, as the authorized 
e-Voting's agency. The facil ity of casti ng votes by a member using remote e-voting ,  as wel l as the e-voting system,
during theAGM wi l l  be provided by CDSL.

1 5. The Members can join the AGM i n  the VC/OAVM mode 1 5  minutes before and after the schedu led time of the
commencement of the Meeting by fol lowing the procedu re mentioned in the Notice . The facil ity of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM wil l  be made avai lable to at least 1 ,000 members on first come first served basis . Th is wil l not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding ), Promoters, Institutional Investors,
Directors , Key Managerial Personnel , the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee , Nomination and Remunerat ton
Committee and Stakeholders Relationsh i p Committee, Aud itors etc. ,  who are al lowed to attend the AGM without
restriction on account of first come fi rst served basis.

5 



The instructions for shareholders for remote e-voting and joining virtual meetings are as under: 

(I) The remote e-voting period. begins on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 at 9.00 A.M. 1ST and ends on Thursday,
September 21, 2023 at 5.00 P.M. 1ST. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, September 15, 2023, may
cast their vote electronically. lhe e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for remote e-voting after Thursday,
September 21, 2023(5.00P.M .IST). Members have the option to cast their vote on any of the resolutions using the
remote e-voting facility either during the aforesaid voting period or during theAGM.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the Meeting date would not be entitled to vote during the AGM.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 December 9, 2020, under Regulation 44 of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by
the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. 
This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the 
shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to 
enable e-voting to all the demataccount holders, byway of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ 
websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. De mat account holders would be able to cast their vote without 
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhanc1ng 
ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBl circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their de mat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method fore-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in Oemat mode is given below: 

Type of Login Method 
shareholders 

Individual 1) Existing user who have opted for Easi/Easiest
Shareholders I. Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/ home/login or URL: www.cdslindia.com
holding securities 11. Click on New System Myeasi
in Demat mode 111. Login with your registered user ID and password.
with CDSL IV. The user will see the e-Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-voting service

provider (ESP)
V. Click on e-Votlng service provider name to cast your vote.

2) User not registered for Easi/Easiest
I. Option to register is available at

https://web.cdsllndia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
II. Proceed with completing the required fields.
111. Follow the steps given in point 1

3) Alternatively, by directly accessing thee-Voting website of COS L
I. Visit URL: www.cdslindia.com
11. ProvideyourDematAccount Number and PAN No.
111. System will authenticate user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as

recorded in the dematAccount.
IV. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP where

thee-Voting is in progress

Individual 1) User already registered for IOeAS facility�
Shareholders I. Visit URL: https:J/eservices.nsdl.com
holding securities 11. Click on the "Beneficial Owner· icon under"Login" under 'IDeAS' section.
in demat mode 111. On the new page, enter User ID and Password. Post successflll authentication, click on
with NSDL "Access to e-Votingn 

IV. Click on Company name ore-Voting service provider and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting service provider website for-casting the vote during the remote a-Voting period.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS ''Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Alternatively by directly accessing thee-Voting website of NSDL
I. Open URL: https:/lwww.evoting.nsdl.com/
11. Click on the 1con "Login" which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' section.
111. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your s1xteen digit demal

account number held with NSDL), Password/ OTP and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

IV. Post successful authentication, you will be requested to select the name of the
Company and thee-Voting Service Provider name.

V. On successful selection, you will be redirected toe-Voting page for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual I. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your DP
Shareholders registered with NSDL/CDSL fore-Voting facility.
(holding securities 11. Once logged-in, you Will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click one-Voting option,
in demat mode) you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful authentication,
login through their wherein you can see a-Voting feature.
Depository 111. Click on options available against Company name ore-Voting service provider and you will
Participants be redirected to a-Voting service provider's website for casting your vote during the remote

a-Voting period without any further authentication.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at above mentioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities In demat mode for any technical Issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login Type Helpdesk Details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can 
Demat mode with CDSL contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
1800 22 55 33 

Individual Shareholders holding securities Members facing any technical issue in login can 
in Demat mode with NSDL contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 
1800-1020-990 and 1800224-430 

(v) Login method fore-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode:

l) The shareholders should log on to thee-voting website: www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on "Shareholders" module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e­
voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PA Enter your 10 digit alpha�numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both dematshareholders as well as physical shareholders). 
Shareholders who have not updated their PAN wit.h the Company/Depository Participant 
are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact the 
Company/RT A. 

Dividend Bank Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 

Details demat account or in the Company records in order to login. 

OR Date of If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please enter the 
Birth (DOB) member id /folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 
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(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,

shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by

the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that

Company opts for a-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any

other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for a-voting on the resolutions contained

in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the Rapicut Carbides Limited on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the option "YES/NO" for voting.

Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO

implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xi) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

(xii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box will be displayed. If

you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your

vote.

(xiii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modifyyour vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and

click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xvi) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for

verification.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians- Remote Voting only.

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates" module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of

the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the

Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.

together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the

Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; investors@rapicutcarbides.com, if they have voted from

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL a-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING TH E AGI\II THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING 
ARE AS UNDER: 

1 . The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the A GM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
e-voting .

2. The l ink for VC/OAVM to attend meeting wi l l  be ava ilable where the EVSN of Company wil l be displayed after
successful  login as per the 'instruct ions mentioned above for e-voting .

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting wi l l  be el igible to attend the meeting . However, they wil l  not be
el igible to vote at theAGM.

4 .  Shareholders are encouraged to  join the Meeting through Laptops / !Pads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be requ i red to al low Camera and use I nternet with a good speed to avoid any distu rbance
during the meeting .

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Aud ioNideo loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended
to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to m itigate any kind of aforesa id gl itches.

7 .  Shareholders who would l ike to exp ress their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a
speaker by sending the i r  request in advance at least 1 0  days prior to Meeting mentioning their name , demat account
number/folio number, email ID ,  mobi le number at investors@rapicutcarbides .com. The speakers will be al lowed to
speak depending upon the avai labi l i ty of time at the d iscretion of the Chai rman .  The shareholders who do not wish to
speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 1 0  days prior to meeti ng mention ing their
name, demat account number/fol io  number, emai l  id , mobile number at investors@rapicutcarbides .com. These
queries wil I be replied to by the Company suitably by email .

8 . Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker wi l l  only be al lowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are :present in the AGM through  VC/OAVM faci l i ty and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voti ng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shal l be el ig ib le to vote through  e­
Voting system available during theAGM.

1 0 . If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e�voting avai lable during the AGM and if the same shareholders 
have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM faci l ity, then the votes cast by such shareholders sha l l  be 
considered inva l id as the facil ity of e-voting du ring the meeting is avai lable on ly to the shareholders attending the 
meeting. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REG ISTERED WITH THE 
DEPOSITORIES. 

1 . For Physical shareholders - please provide necessary detai ls l ike Fol io No . ,  Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN ( self attested scanned copy of PAN card ), Aadhar  ( self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card ) by email to Company/RTA Email ID. 

2. For Demat sha reholders - Please update your Emai l  ID  & mobi le no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP ).

3. For I ndividual Demat shareholders- Please update you r  Email I D  & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DP ) which is mandatory wh ile e-Voting & join ing virtual meetings th rough Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regard ing attending AGM & e-Voting frorn the CDSL e-Voting System , you can write
an email to helpdesk.evoti ng@cdsl ind ia .com or contact at 1 800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facil ity for voting by electron ic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalv i ,
Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services ( I ndia) Limited , A Wing , 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal MI i i
Compo u nds , N M Josh i  Marg , Lower Pa re !  (East ) , M u mbai - 4000 1 3  o r  send an  ema i l  to
helpdesk,evoting@cdslindia . com or call on 1 800 22 55 33.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 1 02 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 201 3 

ltem No. 3 

Re-Appointment of Shri. Atu l Ravindra Garg (DIN:  071 48330) as an Independent Di rector. 

Shri Atul R. Garg (D IN :  07148330) was appointed as an I ndependent Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 1 49, 1 52 of the Compan ies Act, 20 1 3  ( 'the Act' ) ,  read with ru les framed thereunder and applicable regulations of the 
SEBI  (Listing Obl igations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations , 20 1 5  ('SEBI  List i ng Regulations , 20 1 5') for the fi rst 
term from February 07, 2022 till February 06, 2024. Accordingly, with effect from February 07, 2024, Shri Atul R. Garg wi l l  
cease to  be a Di rector. 

The Board of Di rectors at its meeting held on August 05, 2023, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and based on the performance evaluation , considered and approved the re-appoi ntment of Shri . Atul R. Garg 
(D IN :  071 48330}, as an Independent Di rector of the Company for a period of 5 consecutive Years from February 07, 2024 til l 
February 06 , 2029.  He is eligible for being re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company. The Company has 
received notice from a member, proposing his cand idatu re for the office of Director under Section 1 60 of the Compan ies Act, 
201 3 .  

Shri. Atul Ravindra Garg i s  a graduate in Public Finance . He i s  Past Chairman of Gujarat Council of Confederation o f  I ndian 
Industry, Cha irman of Services Sub-group on National C I I  MSME Committee , Chai rman of Zonal Counci l , and on several 
Regional and State Committees. He is having over 3.5 decades of experience in Information Technology Business 
Management, product ideation and development, process and technologies, people/resource Management. He is also 
associated with various Professiona l lndustr1es, Management and Educational Inst itutes, and is Co-founder of Ski l lTel l igent 
Solutions - an industrial workforce tra in i ng Organization where his Company works with shop floor workforce to bui ld right 
competencies and productivity. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 20 1 3, an I ndependent Director shal l hold office for a term upto five 
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and shall be el igible for re-appointment on passing of a Special Resolut ion 
by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's Report. 

The Company� has received necessary decla ratlon(s) from Shri .  Atul R. Garg ,  confirm ing that he meets the criteria of 
I ndependence as prescribed under the Act and the SEB I  Listing Regu lations , 201 5. 

The Company has immensely benefited du ring the tenure of Shri .  Atul R. Garg as an I ndependent Director of the Company 
and the Board is satisfied with the integ rity, expertise, and experience (includi ng the proficiency) of the I ndependent D i rector, 
who is being re-appointed at this AGM. 

Based on the performance eva luation of the I ndependent Director and as per the recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, g iven his backg round,  experience and contribution , in the opinion of the Board his experience in 
the industry wil l  add substantive value to the Board and the Company and it is desirable to appoint Shri. Atu l  R. Garg as an 
I ndependent Director for the second term of five consecutive years. I n  the opinion of the Board , Shri .  Atul R Garg fulfils the 
conditions for his appoi ntment as an I ndependent Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, 20 1 5 and 
he is independent of the Management. 

The Board considers that his association would be of significant benefit to the Company and accordingly, the Board 
recommends re�appointment of Shri. Atu l R. Garg as an I ndependent D irector for the second term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years with effect from February 07 , 2024 u pto February 06, 2029, for the approval by the sha reholders of the Company. 

Except Shri .  Atul R. Garg ,  none of the other D i rectors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their  relatives are 
concerned or interested , financially or otherwise, i n  this resolution. 

The detai ls as requ i red to be provided pursuant to the requ i rements of Regu lation 36(3) of the SEB I  Listi ng Regulations, 20 1 5  
and Secretaria l Standard o n  General Meetings (SS-2) ,  i n  respect of a l l  the Directors seeking appoi ntment / reappointment at 
the 46th Annual General  Meeting , are provided in theAnnexure "A" to th is Notice and forms part of the Statement . 
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The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for the approval of the 
Members. 

ltemNo.4 

Appointment of Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia (DIN: 06522711) as an Independent Director. 

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its 
Meeting dated 29th May, 2023, appointed Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia (DIN: 06522711) as an Additional Director- Independent 
with effect from 1st June, 2023 pursuant to Section 161 (1) of the Act. 

As an Additional Director, Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia holds office till the date of this 46th AGM and is eligible for being 
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company. The Company has received notice from a member, proposing his 
candidature for the office of Director under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi (ICSI) and is also 
Whole - time Company Secretary in Practice. He has over a decade of experience in the field of Corporate Law and has been 
associated with various organisations across India for shaping up their legal regime and also helping setting up businesses in 
India. He also appears before Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal and various authorities across India. He is currently 
Designated Partner of Dholakia & Associates LLP, reputed firm of Company Secretaries and Director of Mruga Corporate 
Servlces Limited, a Corporate Advisory Company and Independent Directorof Aries Agro Limited, Listed Company. 

The Company has received necessary declaration(s) from Shri. Nrupang B. Oholakia confirming that he meets the criteria of 
Independence as prescribed under the Act and "SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015''. 

In the opinion of the Board, 

i. Shri.Nrupang B. Dholakia fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Rules framed thereunder read with the
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 for his appointment as an Independent Director and is independent of the
Management.

ii. He is a person of integr-ity, possesses relevant expertise & his experience in the industry will add tremendous
value to the Board and the Company and it is desirable to appoint Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia. as an Independent
Director.

iii. In compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 2015, the approval of the Members
is sought for the appointment of Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia as an Independent Director for a term of five
consecutive years commencing from 1st June, 2023 upto 30th May, 2028.

Except Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. 

The details as required to be provided pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 
and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS�2), in respect of all the Directors seeking appointment/ reappointment at 
the 46th Annual General Meeting, are provided in the Annexure A to this Notice and forms part of the Statement. 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for the approval of the 
Members. 

ltemNo.5 

Revision in Remuneration of Shri. Abhishek V. Gami (DIN: 07570948), Managing Director of the Company. 

Shn. Abhishek V. Gami was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company on 1st July, 2020, for a period of Five Years 
upto 30th June, 2025. The appointment was approved by the Shareholders through a Special Resolution at the Annual 
General Meeting of the Company dated 28th September 2020. 
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The Board of Directors and the shareholders also approved the Remuneration of Rs. 42,00,000/- (Forty-Two Lakhs only) per 
annum (Cost to Company) for a period of 3 years effective from July 01, 2020 to be paid to Shri. AbhishekV. Gami, Managing 
Director of the Company. Now, it is due to review his remuneration for the remaining part of his tenure. 

Based on the performance evaluation of the Managing Director and on recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, the Board had approved new structure of Remuneration, as detailed in the proposed spedal 
resolutfon, to be paid to the Managing Director, for a period of 2 Years, starting from 1st July, 2023 upto 30th June, 2025, i.e., 
till the date of his tenure as the Managing Director. 

Except Shri. Abhishek V. Gami and Smt. Shruti A Gami, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

The details as required to be provlded pursuant to the requirements of Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), in 
respect of variation of the terms of remuneration of Director, are provided in the Annexure "A" to this Notice and forms part of 
the Statement. The details required as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is provided in Explanatory Statement and 
in theAnnexure B to this Notice and forms part of the Statement. 

This maybe considered to be abstract under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for the approval of the 
Members. 

Item No.6 

The Shareholders at their Meeting held on 22nd September, 2018 has approved the payment of Commission to the non­
whole time Directors of the Company not exceeding 1% (one percent) per annum of the net profits of the Company for a 
period of 5 years commencing from the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2018 as per Sections 197, 198 and other 
applicable provisions, lf any, of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of the Company comprises of highly experienced and proficient Directors who have been devoting their valuable 
time in guiding the Company with their mature advice and direction. It will be fit and proper to reward them by payment of 
Commission on Net Profits of the Company. 

It is therefore proposed that the Directors of the Company other than Managing Director/Whole Time Director be paid, in 
addition to the sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for attending the Meetings of the Board and/or Committees 
thereof, Commission of 1 % (one percent) on the Net Profits of the Company, calculated in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for a period of five Financial Years commencing from the Financial Year ending 31st 
March, 2-023. 

The proposed Special Resolution seeks to obtain the approval of the Shareholders for the said payment of Commission to 
Directors. 

All the Directors except Shri.AbhishekV. Gami, Managing Director, are concerned or interested in passing of this Resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for the approval of the 
Members-. 

Registered Office: 

119, GIDC Industrial Area, 

Ankleshwar - 393002, 

Gujarat, India. 

Place: Ankleshwar 

Date: August 05, 2023 
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Rapicut Carbides Limited 

Komal P. Soni 

Company Secretary 
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Annexure-A 

Details of the Directors seeking Appointment/Re-appointment at the 46th Annual General Meeting pursuant to Regulation 
36(3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2016 and Secretarial Standard-2 are as 
under: 

Name of the Shri, Atul Ravindra Garg Shri. Nrupang Bhumitra Dholakia Shri. Abhishek V Gami Smt. Shruli A. Gami 
Director 
Date of Birth 13-09-1964 17-08-1991 29-09-1988 12-04-1990
Age 58Years -32 Years "34 Years 33 Years 
Date of first February 07, 2022 Jun� 01, 2023 July 01, 2020 July 01, 2020 
Appointment on 
the Board 
Director 07148330 06522711 07570948 08764442 
Identification 
Number 

Qualifications Graduate fn Public Fellow Member of the Institute of B.SC Chemistry M.Com, Diploma in
Finance Company Secretaries of India, (Gold Medalist), Computer Application

New Delhi (ICSI), Bachelor's M.SC (Organic).
Degree In Law and Master's 
Degree in Business Law, Diploma 
in International Cyber Laws and 
Executive Programme in 
Corporate Laws 

Nature of Information Technology Decadeof experience in field of Expertise inprocessing Experience in handling 
Expertise in business Management, corporate laws; Associated with of Tungsten and its base Accounts, 
specific functional product ideation and variousorganisations across India Raw Material. Extensive Administration and 

areas development, process for shaping up their legal regime experience in Production, IT related activities. 
and technologies, people and also helping in settingup their Marketing, Quality 
/resource Management; business strategies in India. Assurance and 
setting \Jp systems and Appearances before National Administration. 
best practices ln Company Law Tribunal and other 
manufacturing industries. Adjudicating Authorities. 

- Skillte'lligent Solutions - Mruga Corporate United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd. Unrted Wolfram Pvt. Ltd. 
Pvt. Ltd. Services Urnited;

- TIX Ecosystems - Aries Agro Limited,
Directorships in Pvt. ltd.

other Companies -Anjaleem Enterprise
Pvt. Ltd.

- Dezai Family
Foundation

Chairman/ Member of Audit Nil Member of Audit Member of Nomination 
Member of the Committee and Committee and Stake and Remuneration 

Committees of the Nomination and holder's Relationship Committee and 

Board of Directors Remuneration Committee Stake holder's 

of the Company Committee Relationship 
Committee 

Chairman/Member Nil He is Member of Audit Committee, Nil Nil 
of the Committees Corporate Social Responsibility 

of the Board of Committee and Nomination and 

Directors of other Remuneration Committee of 

Companies in Aries Agro Limited. 

which he is a 
Director• 

No. of Shares held NIL Shares NIL Shares 16.44,673 Shares 5,28,393 Shares 
In the Company 

Relationship with None None Husband of Wife of 
other Directors Smt. Shrutl A. Gami Shri. Abhishek v, Gaml 

,;1nd other Key (Non-Executive Director) (Managing Director) 

Managerial 
Personnel 

No. of Meetings of 4 out of 4 NA 4outof4 4 out of 4 
the Board 
attended during 
the FY 2022-2023. 
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Terms and As per Resolution As per Resolution As per Resolution Re-appointment 

conditions at Item No. 3 of the at Item No. 4 of the at Item No. 5 of the. in terms of Section 

of Appointment / 
accompanying Notice 

accompanying Notice of accompanying Notice 152(6) of the 
of AGM read with 

Re-appointment Explanatory Statement AGM read with Explanatory of AGM read with Companies Act, 

thereto. Statement thereto Explanatory 2013. 

Statement thereto 

Details of Sitting Fees as approved Sitting Fees as approved by Rs. 64,00,000 p.a. as Sitttng Fees as 

Remuneration by Board of Directors of Board of Directors of the per Resolution approved by Board 

sought to be paid 
the Company. Company. No. 5 to this Notice. of Directors of the 

Company. 
Commission .as may be Commission as may be 
approved by the Board approved by the Board Commission as may 
and Members of the ancf Members of the be approved by the 
Company. Company. Board and Members 

of the Company. 

Remuneration last Sitting Fees as approved New Appointment. Rs. 42,00,000 p.a. Sitting Fees as 

drawn by Board of Directors (As approved by approved by Board 
of the Company. Shareho'lders at their of Directors of the 

Meeting held on 28th Company. 
September, 2020 for a 
period of 3 Years w.e.f 
July 01, 2020) 

Listed Entities from NA NA NA NA 

which the person 
has resigned in 
the past three 
years 

Skills and Shri. Atul Ravindra Shri. Nrupang B. Dho'lakia ls NA NA 

Capabilities Garg is a graduate in a Fellow Member of the 
required for the role Publ[c Ftnance. He is Institute of Company 
& the manner in having over 3.5 Secretaries of India, New 
which the proposed decades of experience Delhi (ICSI) and is also 
person meets such 
requirement in lnfonnation Whole - tirne Company 

(applicable for Technology Business Secretary in Practice. He has 

Independent Management, product over a decade of experience 

Director) ideation and in the field of Corporate Law 
development, process and has been associated with 
and technologies, various organisations across 
people/resource India for shaping up their 
Management. He is also legal regime and also helping 
associated· with varfous setting up businesses in India-
Professional Industries, He also appears before 
Management and Hon'ble National Company 
Educational Institutes, Law Tribunal and various 

authorities across lndla. 
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A.nnexure-8 

STATEMENT CONTAINING REQUIRED INFORMATION AS PER SCHEDULE V OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013. 

1. General Information:

I. Nature of Industry: - The Company is engaged in Manufacturing ofTungsten and Tungsten Carbide Products.

II. DateofCommencementofCommercial Production: 02-10-1979

Ill. In case of new Companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by
Financial Institution appearing in the prospectus: - Not Applicable

IV. Financial Performance based on given indicators:

During the year under review, the Company has reported a Loss of Rs. 135.25 Lakhs as against Rs. 105.56 Lakhs
in the previous Financial Year 2021-22 The brief statement indicating loss related figures is given below:

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation and Tax (Including Deferred Tax) 

Profit/(Loss) after Depreciation and Tax 

V. The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as under�

Sr No. Particulars 

1. Foreign Exchange earnings (actual inflows)

2. Foreign Exchange expenditure (actual outflows)

VI. Foreign Investments or Collaborations, if any- Not Applicable

2. Information about the appointee:

i. Background Details

Year ended 

March 31, 2023 

3,957.26 

(74.52) 

(135.25) 

2022-2023 

5.92 

600.94 

Particulars Shri. Abhishek V. Gami 

Age 34 Years 

Designation, Managing Director 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Year ended 

March 31, 2022 

3,613.64 

(38.46) 

(105.56) 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 

2021-2022 

1.75 

552.55 

Qualification B.SC Chemistry(Gold Medalist),M.SC {Organic)

it Past remuneration during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023: 

Particulars 

Mr. Abhishek V. Garni 

iii. Recognition or Awards

NA

2021-22 

Rs. 42 Lakhs p.a. 
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iv. Job Profile and his Suitability

Shri. Abhishek V. Gami is the Managing Director of the Company. He looks after the daily operations in all key areas of
activity, administration and overall functioning of the Company.

He is also the Promoter of the Company and having academic and professional experience of handling the activities
rela1ed to the Business of the Company.

v. Remuneration proposed: Details on proposed remuneration have been stated in the Resolution No. 5 of this Notice.

vi. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to Industry, size of the Company, Profile of the Position and
Person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would be with respect to the Country of his Origin}:

For the responsibility shouldered by Shri. Abh1shek V. Gami as the Managing Director of the Company for its smooth
runningand propelling the Company's growth drivers in the period ahead, the remuneration paid to him is
commensurate and compares favourably with the Compensation paid to the Business Heads of like-sized and similarly
positioned businesses.

vii. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the Company, or relationship with the Managerial Personnel
or other Directors, if any.

No such pecuniary relationship exists except for relationship with Smt. Shruti A. Gami, Non-Executive Director of the
Company, wife of Shri. Abhishek V. Gami.
Shri. Abhishek V. Gami and Smt. Shruti A. Gami are also the Promoters of the Company.

Shri. Abhishek V. Gami along with Smt. Shruti A. Gami, holds 21, 73,066 Equity Shares in the Share Capital of the
Company.

3. Other information:

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits
With the abrupt and steep rise in cost of raw materials and consumables, it was challenging for the Company· to
appreciably pass on the cost push to the customers, in the face of stiff Competitive Environment. The Management
continues its focus on appropriate Marketing Policy decisions in response to the improving overall market environment.

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement
The Company is embarking into manufacture of related products andis attempting feasible backward integration which
will help improve profitability of the Company.The Company and the Managing Director himself are pushing all limits to
develop new products and business of the Company which can help Company to move out of Loss. Also.progressive
technological improvementsare being introduced and this has led to more expenses initially. Newer Technology and
resultant processes will help to sustain the growing Competition.

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms
The Company has taken various cogent initiatives to improve its Market Share and Financial Performance. It has been
aggressively pursuing and implementing its strategies to improve Financial Performance.
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BOARD'S REPO�T 

Dear Members, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 46th Annual Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the 
year ended March 31, 2023 (year under review). The Company operates only in one business segment viz., Tungsten and 
Tungsten Carbide Products. 

Operations and State of Affairs of the Company: 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 

Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation and Tax ('Including Deferred Tax) 

Profit/(Loss) after Depreciation and Tax 

Reassessment of Losses (Profit) on defined employee benefit plans 

and fair value of loan 

Total Comprehensive. income for the year 

Add: 

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from previous year 

Profit/(Loss) available for appropriation 

Appropriations 

Dividend and Dividend Tax 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Profit/(Loss) carried to Balance Sheet 

Year ended 

31/03/2023 

3,957.26 

(74.52) 

(135.25) 

(31.07) 

(104.18) 

1,022.68 

918.50 

918.51 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Year ended 

31/03/2022 

3,613.64 

(38.46) 

(105.56) 

1.14 

(106.71) 

1,127.11 

1,022.68 

1,022.68 

The Financial Year 2022-23 has registered increase in production and sales volumes as compared to previous Financial 
Year. The Company's performance for the Financial Year 2022-23 (Sales Rs. 3,957.26 Lakhs) has shown substantial 
improvement in Revenue from Operations in comparison with the previous year 2021-22 (Sales Rs. 3,613.64 lakhs). 

However, with the abrupt and steep rise in cost of raw materials and consumables, it was not possible for the Company to 
appreciably pass on the cost push to the customers, in the face of stiff Competitive Environment. The Management continues 
its focus on appropriate Marketing Policy decisions in response to the improving overall market conditions. 

DIVIDEND 
The Board of Directors of your Company, after oonsidering relevant circumstances has decided that it would be prudent not to 
recommend any Dividend for the year under review. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
In terms of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not propose to transfer any amount to General 
Rese,ve for the Financial Year 31st March, 2023. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Schedule V of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
("Listing Regulations") forms part of this Annual Report. Certain Statements in the said report may be forward-looking. Many 
factors may affect the actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future 
performance and outlook. The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed asAnnexure-A. 

SUBSIDIARIES,ASSOCIATES, AND JOINT VENTURE 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company and has not entered into any Joint Venture during the 
year under review. 
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DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'') and rules made 
thereunder and no amount on account of repayment of deposits or interest thereon was due during the year under review. 

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

There is no change in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company during the year under review. The paid-up Equity Share 
Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023, is Rs. 5,37, 12,450/- (Rupees Five Crores Thirty Seven lakhs Twelve 
Thousand Four Hundred Fifty only). 

DIRECTORS 

During the year under review; 

► Shri. Kishore D. Sharma (DIN: 08763613) re-appointed as an Independent .Director of the Company for the second
term of five consecutive years with effect from July 01, 2022 at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation;

► Shri. Atul R. Garg (DIN: 07148330) appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of two
consecutive years with effect from February 07, 2022, at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company, not
liable to retire by rotation;

► Shri. Dhananjay D. Kanitkar (DIN: 03523774) appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company with effect
from February 07, 2022 at the 45th Annual General Meeting of the Company liable to retire by rotation .

.> On the recommendation received from the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the Board had appointed / re­
appointed;

•

• 

Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia (DIN: 06522711) as an Additional Independent Director with effect from 1st June,
2023, who holds office up to the date of the forthcoming 46th Annual General Meeting. His appointment has

been made as an Independent Director for a period of five years from 1st June, 2023 to 30th May, 2028
subject to approval of the members.

Shri. Atul R. Garg (DIN: 07148330)as an Independent Director for the second term offrve consecutive years
With effect from 7th February, 2024, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of five years frotn 7th
February, 2024 to 6th February, 2029.

The Board recommends; 

• Appointment of Shri. Nrupang B. Dholakia as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period of
five consecutive years from i st June, 2023 to 30th May, 2028.

• Re-appointment of Shri. Atul R. Garg as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a second term
for a term of five consecutive years from 7th February, 2024 to 6th f ebruary, 2029, who is eligible to be re­
appointed as an Independent Director for the second term.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Smt. Shruti A. 
Gami retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers herselffor re-appointment. 

Details of Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment, as required by Regulation 36(3) of the listing Regulations, are 
given in the Notice of the forthcoming 46th Annual General Meeting. 

The above appointments and re-appointments form a part of the Notice of the forthcoming 46th Annual General Meeting, and 
the Resolutions are recommended for Members' approval. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Shri. Abhishek V. Gami, Managing Director, Shri. Vinay C. Sura, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f.14th February, 2023) and Ms. 
Kamal P. Soni, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

There were following changes in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year: 

Shri. Vaibhav P. Shah ceased to be Key Managerial Personnel (Chief Financial Officer) pursuant to his resignation at the close 
of business hours on 5th September, 2022. 

Shri. Vi nay C. Sura was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and was designated as a Key Managerial Personnel with 
effect from 14th February, 2023. 
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

Four (4) Board Meetings were held during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 on the following dates: 

(i) May 28, 2022, (ii)August 01, 2022, (iii) October 28, 2022 and (iv) February 14, 2023.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations I confirmations from all the Independent Directors of the Company as required under 
Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of1he Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 stating that they meet criteria of Independence as defined under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 
16(1 )(b) of the Listing Regulations. 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations to the extent applicable, the Board has 
carried out the Annual performance evaluatjon of the Directors individually as well as evaluation of the working of the Board 
and of the Committees of the Board, by way of individual and collective feedback from Directors. 

The following were the Evaluation Criteria: 

- Knowledge and Skills

- Professional Conduct

-Duties, Roleand Functions

- Fulfilment of the Independence Criteria and their independence from the management;

- Performance as Team Leader/Member

-Evaluating Business Opportunity and analysis of Risk Reward Scenarios

- Set Key Goals and Achievements

- Professional Conduct and Integrity

-Sharing of Information with the 'Board.

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process and also the outcome of evaluation was positive without 
any concerns from any Director. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee comprises of the Directors viz. Shri. Kishore D. Sharma, Independent Director as Chairman of the 
Committee, Shri. Abhishek V. Gami, Managing Director and Shri.Atul R. Garg, Independent Of rector as Members. 

The Committee inter alia reviews the l'nternal Control System, Reports of Internal Auditors, Key Audit Matters presented by the 
Statutory Auditors and Compliance of various Regulations. The Committee also reviews the Financial Statements before they 
are placed before the Board of Directors. 

ihere was no instance where the recommendation by the Audit Committee was not accepted by the Board. 

VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to the provjsions of Section 177(9} & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism or Whistle Blower 
Policy for Directors, Employees and other Stakeholders to report genuine concerns has been established. The same is 
uploaded on the website of the Company and the web-link as required under the Listing Regulations is: 
https://www.rapicutcarbides.com/Policies.html 

The employees of the Company have the right/option to report their concern/grievance to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. No one was denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY ANO COMPLIANCE 

The Company's internal control procedures which include internal Financial Controls, ensure compliance with various 
policies, practices and statutes keeping in view the Organisation's size and nature of the business. The I ntemal Auditor carries 
out extensive audits throughout the year. 

Your Company has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and the timely preparation of reliable Financial Disclosure. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company is not falling under the criteria mentioned in Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the 
Company is not required to develop or implement policy on any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives. 

POLICY ON NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION 

In compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has laid down a Nomination 
and Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on the Company's website. The web-link as required under the 
Companies Act 2013 is: https://www.rapicutcarbides.com/Policies.html 

The salient features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy are as under: 

Setting out 

1) the objectives of the Policy

2) Definitions for the purposes of the Policy

3) Appointment, resignation, retirement and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel

4) Remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Persohnel.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

The Company is not falling under the criteria mentioned in Regulation 43A of the Listing. Regulations pertaining to Dividend 
Distribution Policy. Therefore, the Company is not required to formulate Dividend Distribution Policy. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The particulars of Material Related Party Transactions entered by the Company which were at Arm's Length and were in 
Ordinary Course of Business under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in the prescribed Form AOC-2 as 
"Annexure B". 

All related party transactions entered by the Company during the period under review, were in the ordinary course of business 
and at arm's length. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Pursuant to Regulation 15 (2) of the Listfng Regulatiohs, the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions as 
specified in Regulations 17 to 27, 46(2)(b) to (i) and (t) and Para C, D and E of Schedule Vare not applicable to the Company, 
as the paid-up equity share capital of the Company is less than Rs. 10 Crores and net worth is also less than Rs. 25 Crores as 
on the last day of previous FinanciaJ Year. Hence, the Company is not required to furnish Corporate Governance Report. 

LISTING OF SECURITIES 

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE)with security ID 500360.The Company confirms that 
the Annual Listing Fees to the Stock Exchange for the Financial Year 2023-24 have been paid. 

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

During the year under review, your Company has not granted any loans. nor furnished guarantees, nor made investments as 
envisaged under Section 186 of the Act. 

DETAILS OF APPLICATION/S MADE/ ANY PROCEEDINGS PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023 

During the year under review, no application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, nor there are 
any proceedings pending under the said code against the Company. 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME 
SETTLEMENT & VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG 
WITH THE REASONS THEREOF 

During the year under review, the Company has not made any one-time settlement with Banks/ Financial Institutions or while 
taking loans from the Banks or Financial Institutions, if any. Accordingly, no details are required to be disclosed. 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

In terms of Sub-section 3(m) of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in 

Annexure "C"forming part of this report. 

AUDITORS 

A. Statutory Auditors

In compliance with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. KC Mehta & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,

were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members at their 44th Annual General Meeting held on 28th
September, 2021 to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) years i.e. till the conclusion of 49th Annual General Meeting ('AGM')

for the Financial Year 2025-26.

The Auditor's Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 does not contain any Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remark
and hence do not call for any comments. The Auditor's Report is enclosed with the Financial Statements in this Annual

Report.

8. Secretarial Auditors

In pursuance of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Board of Directors

appointed M/s. Samdam Shah & Kabra, Practicing Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the
Financial Year 2023�24.

The Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. Samdani Shah & Kabra, Practising Company Secretaries for the Financial Year

2022-23, is at:lnexed herewith asAnhexure D.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any Qualification, Reservation or Adverse Remark and hence do not call

for any comments

C. lnternalAuditors

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors appointed M/s. Rays & Associates.,

Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

D. CostAuditors

The provisions of the Cost Audit are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company is not required to appoint
Cost Auditor. However, Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 (1) read with the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 is applicable to the Company and accordingly cost records are made

and maintained bythe Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS COMPLIANCE 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government pursuant to Section 118 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The provisions of Regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations pertaining to Risk Management Committee are not applicable to the 
Company. However, the Company has developed and are implementing Risk Management Policy including identification of 

various risks, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company, the Company has risk 
assessment and mitigation procedures in place and the Board has been kept informed of such assessment. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AND CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 

There have been no material changes. and commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company since the closure of 
the Financial Year i.e. since March 31, 2023 till the date ofBoard's Report. 

Further, it is hereby confirmed that there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

A copy of the draft Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act has 

been placed on the Company's website. The web-link as required under the Act is as under: 

https://www.rapicutcarbides.com/Annual_Return_MGT7.html 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES ANO RELATED DISCLOSURES 

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Person11el) Rules, 2014 are as under: 

atio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the em lo ees of the Com an for the 
Financial Year: 

Name of Directors 

Shri. Abhishek Gami - Managing Director 

Shri. Dhananjay Kanitkar- Non Executive Director 

Shri. Kishore Sharma - Independent Director 

Smt. Shruti Gami- Non Executive Director 

Shri. Atul Garg - Independent Director 

Ratio of Remuneration of 

Directors to Median 

Remuneration of Employees 

1:13.91 

1:0.200 

1:0.200 

1:0.200 

1:0.200 

Percen 
· · ·

. uneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer. Company 
Secreta in the Financia Year: 

Name 

Shri. Abhishek V. Gami 

Shri. Vaibhav Shah - Chief Financial Officer 

(Ceased to be Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 6th September, 2022) 

Shri. Vinay C. Sura 

{Appointed w.e.f. 14th February, 2023) 

Ms. Komal Soni - Company Secretary 

Percentage Increase in 

Remuneration in Financiai 
Year 2022-23 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

18% 

All Non-Executive & Independent Directors are paid only sitting fees for attending Meetings. 

Percentage increase in the median remuneration of Employees in the 

Financial Year 

Number of Permanent Employees on the rolls of Company 

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees 

other than the Managerial Personnel in the last Financial Year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 

and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 

circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration 

(24.41) 

99 

15.82% 

(Non-Managerial Personnel) 

2.09% 

(Managerial Personnel) 

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the Managerial and Non-Managerial Personnel is as per lhe Nomination and 
Remuneration policy of the Company. 

A statement showing the names and particulars of the employees falling within the purview of Rule 5(2) of the aforesaid rules 
are provided in the Annual Report. 
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Details of top ten employees in terms of gross remuneration drawn during the Financial Year 2022-23 

Date of 
% Equity 

Commencemen 

Remuneratio Nature of 
Experienc 

t of Age 
shares 

Sr. e (In Last held in 

No 
Name Designation n during the Employment Qualifications 

complete 
employment in 

Employment the 
year (In. Rs) 

d years) 
with Rapleut years 

Compan 
Carbides 

Limited y 

l Abhishek Managing 42,00,000 Regular B.Sc(Chemistry) 13 Yrs 01/07/2020 35 Yrs Na.vin Fluorine 40.28% 
V.Gami Director M.Sc(Organic) Int. Ltd. 

2 Sanjay Dy Gen Mgr 14,63,149 Regular B.sc MBA 29 Yrs 20/06/2005 53 Yrs Bipico 0.00068 
Kumar (Marketing) (Marketing) Industries % 

3 Ashok D Area Sales 10,77,098 Regular BA 33 Yrs 15/12/1993 54 Yrs Sai Nil 
Sanap Manager Employment 

Services 

4 AlokK Manager 9,26,043 Regular Dlploma in 31 Yrs 05/04/2007 53 Yrs Gujarat Nil 

Yadav (Maint) Electrical Organics Ltd 
Engg. 

5 C Area Sales 7,55,353 Regular Higher 30 Yrs 01/09/1993 53 Yrs Started Job in Nil 
Arunachal Officer Secondary Rapicut 
am Exam. Carbides Ltd. 

6 Pradeep P Sr. Officer - 7,21,249 Regular B.A. 34 Yrs 01/05/1992 54 Yrs Vishal Nil 
S"' MD Cell Malleables 

Ltd. 

7 Kuldeep Sr. Engg. 7,12,546 Regular Dip. In Mech. 20 Yrs 08/03/2008 41 Yrs Miranda FEW Nil 
Singh Production Engg,; Dip. In Tools Pvt. ltd. 

Safety 

8 HU Sr. 7,01,387 Regular Dip. In Mech. 34 Yrs 12/04/1991 52 Yrs Mipco Nil 

Prankda ExecutiVe{Pr Engg. Seamless Ltd. 
od. P&C) 

9 Sandeep C Credit 6,83,568 Regular B.Com 33 Yrs 01/08/2020 49 Yrs Self Employed Nil 
Narsingha Control 
ni Officer 

10 Santosh Sr. Exe. P.P 6,56,253 Regular ITITurner 27 Yrs 25/02/2016 45 Yrs RM Dripp Nil 

Jadhav Sprinkler 
System 

*Shri. Pradeep P. S. ceased to hold the office of Senior Officer (MD's Cell) of the Company w.e.f 16th February, 2023 pursuant

to his Resignation.

None of the Employee, as mentioned above, is a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company, except for Shri. 

Abhishek V. Gami, being the Managing Director himself. 

Details of every employee, who was employed throughout the Financial Vear and was in receipt of remuneration for 

that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than One Crore and Two Lakh Rupees: 

No such case. 

Details of every employee, who was employed for a patt of the Financial Year and was in receipt of remuneration for 

any part of that year, at a rate which, In the aggregate, was not less than Eight lakh fifty thousand rupees per month: 

No such case. 

Details of every employee, who was employed throughout the Financial Year or part thereof, was in receipt of 

remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate; is In 

excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or whole-time Director or manager and holds by himself or along with 

his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the Company: 

No such case. 
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Details of Unclaimed Suspense Account 

Disclosure pertaining to Unclaimed Suspense Account as required under Schedule Vof the Listing Regulations, is as under: 

Particulars No. of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares 

Aggregate No. of Shareholders and outstandingshares lying in 
the suspense account as on April 1, 2022 
Number of shareholders/legal heirs who approached to the 
issuer/Registrar for transfer of shares from suspense account 
during the Financial Year 2022-23 

Number of shareholders/legal heirs to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the Financial Year 
2022-23 
Aggregate No. of Shareholders and outstanding shares lying in 
the suspense account as on March 31, 2023 

8 

2 

(2) 

6 

450 

(450) 

1,762 

The voting rights on the equity shares which are transferred to Unclaimed Suspense Account are frozen till the rightful owner 

of such equity shares claims the shares. 

DISCLOSURES AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 

AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted. a policy on Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Work Place in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of 

Complaints of Sexual Harassment at Workplace. The Company has complied With provisions relating to the constitution of 

Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal)Act. 2013. 

During the Year under review, no complaints were reported under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal)Act,2013. 

TRANSFER OF EQUITY SHARES, UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO THE IEPF 

In line with the statutory requirements, the Company has transferred to the credit of IEPF set up by the Government of India, 

equity shares in respect of which dividend had remained unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven (7) consecutive years within 

the time lines laid down by the Mtnistry of Corporate Affairs. Unpaid/ unclaimed dividend for seven (7) years or more has also 

been transferred to the IEPF pursuant to the requirements under the Act. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

1. The Company does f)Ot have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by

trustees for the benefit of employees.

2. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors appointed/ re-appointed during the year are persons of integrity

and possess expertise, experience and proficiency.

3. No significant or otherwise material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going

concern status and Company's operations in future.

4. No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under section 143(12)oftheActtotheAudit Committee or the Board.

5. The Managing Director is not in receipt of Commission from any Company.

6. The Business Responsibility & Sustainability Reporting (BRSR) is not applicable to the Company.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant ,to the requirement of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability 

confi'rms that: 

a) in the preparation of the Annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of

the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period:

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the Annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial

controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such

systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNEXURE-A 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

TUNGSTEN CARBIDE INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, PERFORMANCE, DEVELOPMENT, OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK 

The Management is happy to share thalthe overall business climate is slowly but certainly improving. 

OUTLOOK 

We are pleased to present the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) report for Rapicut Carbides Limited for the 

Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023. This report aims to provide you with a comprehensive overview of our business 

performance, key achievements, challenges faced, and future prospects. 

The Tungsten Carbide Industry plays a crucial role in various sectors, including Manufacturing, Mining, Construction, 

Defense and Aerospace. Tungsten Carbide, a hard and wear-resistant material, is known for its exceptional properties, 
making it highly sought after for cutting tools, drilling equipment, and wear parts.During the year, the Tungsten Carbide 
Industry experienced several noteworthy trendssuch as growth in demand for cutting tools, increasing usage in the 

automotive industry, technological advancements, etc. These trends have not only influenced the industry's overall 

performance but also opened up new growth opportunities for Companies operating within the sector. 

We have no doubt that overall Outlook of the Industry during the current Year holds promise of appreciable growth. 

We extend our gratitude to all stakeho·lders for their continued support and belief ln the potential of the Company. As we move 

forward, we are comcnitted to steering our business towards sustainable growth, adhering to best practices, and delivering 
long-term value to our shareholders. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONS 

The product-wise performance of the Company is mentioned below:� 

Particulars of Products 12 Months ended 
Sr. No. 

Manufactured 31st March, 2023 

1. Metal Cutting 4,89,252 Nos. 

2. Mining 2,54,520 Nos. 

3. Wear Parts 72,653 Nos. 

4. Intermediates 58,605 Kgs .. 

5. TC Tool Room Products 30,841 Nos. 

12 Months ended 
31st March, 2022 

3,55,375 Nos. 

3,18,190 Nos. 

65,982 Nos. 

55,695 Kgs. 

26,501 Nos. 

In all products with the exception of Mining, Company succeeded in securing fairly reasonable volumes. Mining activity was 

most impacted by emerging substitute product. namely Taper Mining Bit, hence the numbers were restricted to about 80% 
compared with the previous year. 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

Opportunities and threats are crucial factors that influence the performance and outlook of the Tungsten Carbide Industry. 
Understanding these factors is essential for businesses to make informed decisions and develop effective strategies. Here 

are some key opportunities and threats in the Tungsten Carbide Industry: 

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS 

Growing Demand in Industrial Applications Fluctuating Raw Material Prices 

Technological Advancements Competition from Substitute Materials 

Expansion of the Aerospace and Defense Sector Geopolitical and Trade Factors 

Increasing Use in Additive Manufacturing Economic Downturns 

Emerging Economies and Infrastructural Technological Disruptions 

Development 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Internal Control Systems and procedures in the Company are commensurate with nature and size of its business. It is to be 

rioted that not only the assets of the Company are safeguarded and protected against any losses, but also all the transactions 

are properly accounted and that they meetthetestoflegal compliances. 

Apart from regular review and monitoring Internal Control Systems by the Company's Internal Control Department, an 

independent Chartered Accountants firm has been appointed to conduct the internal audit for the Company's manufacturing 

units. This provides reasonable assurance to the effectiveness of the internal control systems and procedures and reliability 

of Financial Reporting. 

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

The Company has only one reportable primary business segment as per Ind AS 108 i.e. Tungsten & Tungsten Carbide 

Products. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

The Company evaluates and monitors all risks associated with various areas of operations such as production, sales. 

inventory Management, debtor's Management with a view to counter the adverse impact of the risk factors, to the extent 

feasible. However, the element of risks and concerns remains as under: -

• Price Volatility in key raw materials and consumables:

• Uncertainty in sustained stability of Rupee Dollar equation;

• Natural Calamities, and other Unforeseen circumstances like pandemic, etc.

SAFETY, HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT (SHE) MANAGEMENT 

Your Company continues to adopt best safety practices which have helped avoiding serious accidents. Regular safety 

inspection of plant and machinery is carried out to prevent accidents 

HUMAN RESOURCES/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

Our people related policies span the entire spectrum of hiring the right talent as best as possible, up-skilling them and 

motivating them. This enables them in putting their best foot forward for fulfilling set targets. We do our best to provide our 

people healthy work environment that encourages sharing of knowledge, concerns and where the cross-pollination of ideas 

can always bloom. This reflects in their day to day performance at the ground level. 

The details of employees are as under: 

Number of Employees at the beginning of the year 98 

Number of Employees recruited during the year 23 

Number of Employees resigned during the year. 16 

Number of Employees retired/expired during the year 6 

Number of Employees at the end of the year 99 
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-2023 

The key financial ratios during FY 2022-23 vis a vis FY 2021-22 are as below: 

Sr Key Financial Ratios FY 2022-23 
No. 
1 Current Ratio (in times) 2.47 

2 Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 0.16 

3 Debt Service Coverage ratio (in times) (0.99) 
4 Return on Equity ratio (%) (6.16) 

5 Inventory Turnover ratio (no. of days) 170.32 

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (no. of 3.80 

days) 
7 Trade Payable Turnover Ratio (no. of 5.33 

days) 
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 2.23 
9 Net Profit ratio (%) (0.03) 

10 Return on Capital Employed(%) (0.03) 

11 Return on Investment(%) (0.02) 

12 Interest Coverage Ratio NA 

Explanation on Significant changes in the above ratios:-

1 Current Ratio : There is no significant change in the said. Ratio. 

FY 2021-22 

3.14 

0.09 

0.93 

(4.59) 
179.08 

4.14 

5.07 

1.95 

(0.03) 

(0.02} 

0.05 

NA 

2 Debt Equity Ratio : The change is malnly due to usance of Cash Credit limit in Current Year vls-a-v!s 
Nllusancein Last Year. 

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio : The change is mainly due to increase in Loss & Interest Cost. 

4 Return on Equity Ratio% : Change in Ratio is mainly due to increase in sales as compared to Previous Year. 

5 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

11 

Inventory Turnover Ratio : There is no significant change in the said Ratio. 

Trade Receivable Tu mover Ratio: There is no significant change in the said Ratio. 

Trade Payable Tu mover Ratio : There is no significant change in the said Ratio. 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio : there fs no significant change in the said Ratio. 

Net Profit Ratio% : There ,is no significant change in the said Ratio. 

Return on Capital Employed% : Change in ratio is due to increase in EBIT as compared to Previous Year, 

Return on Investment% : Change in ratio due to lower interest income as compare to Previous year. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates 
and expectations are "forward lookingu within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ 
materially from those either expressed or implied. 

The Management is confide.nt that your Company with its Quality products and Brand Equity and enduring relations with its 
customers and commitment of its staff, will overcome the disturbing impact of prevailing pandemic and work towards 
achieving growth in time to come. 

Date : August 05, 2023 
Place : Ankleshwar 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Dhananjay D. Kanitkar 

Chairman 

DIN: 03523774 

Abhishek V. Gami 

Managing Director 

DIN: 07570948 



ANNEXURE-B 

FORM AOC-2 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso 
thereto. 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Followings are the transactions at Arm's Length and fn the Ordinary Course of Business. There is no transaction which can be 
defined as the transaction not being at Arm's Length and not in the ordinary course of business. 

Sr. 
Particulars 

No. 

1. Name(s) of the related
party and nature of
relationship

2. Nature of contracts/
arrangements/
transactions

3. Duration of the contracts

4. Salient terms of the
contracts or arrangem-
ents or transactions
including the value,
if any

5. Justification for entering into
such contracts or arrangem-
ents or transactions

6. 
Date(s) of approval by 
the Board 

7. Amount paid as
advances, if any:

8. Date on which the
special resolution was
passed in general meeting
as required under first
oroviso to section 188

Date : August 05, 2023 
Place : Ankleshwar 

Details of 
contracts or 

arrangements 
or transactions 

not at arm's 
length basis 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

Details of materiaJ contracts or arrangement or 
transactions at arm's length basis 

United Wolfram Private Limited (Earlier known as M/s United Wolfram) 
Shri. Abhishek Gami is a Director in United Wolfram Pvt, Ltd. 
and Managing Director of Rapicut Carbides Limited. 
Smt. Shruti A. Gami is a Director in United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd. 
and Non-ExecutiveDirector of Rapicut Carbides Limited. 

1) Purchase of Raw Material viz Tungsten Trioxide, Sodium
Tungstate and other Raw Materials from United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd.

2) Sale of Finished Products viz 'Inserts. Buttons and Tungsten
Metal Powder, Fused Tungsten Carbide Powder, Tunsgten Carbide
Powder and other Finished Product to United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd ..

All the Related Party Transactions were as open Arrangement/ 
Contract to be executed whenever need arises during the 
Financial Year ending 31st March, 2023. 

1) Credit period of 45 days available to Rapicut Carbides Limited for
making payment for purchase of Raw Material from United
Wolfram Pvt. Ltd.
Total Value of purchase of Raw Material from United Wolfram
Pvt. Ltd. is Rs. 19.62 crores fot fjnancial Year 2022-23.

2) Credit period of 45 days provided to United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd.
for making payment for sale of Finished Products by Rapicut
Carbides Limited.
Total Value of Sale of Finished Products to United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd.
is Rs. 3.17 crores for Financial Year 2022-23.

Not Applicable 

Omnibus Approval for Related Party Transaction granted at the 
Board Meeting held on 4th February, 2022. 

Review of Transaction on the following dates: 
28-05-2022 28-10-2022
01-08-2022 14-02-2023

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
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Dhananjay D. Kanitkar 
Chairman 

DIN: 03523774 

Abhishek V. Gami 
Managing Director 

DIN: 07570948 



ANNEXURE "C" TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 

INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE ACT READ AND RULE 8(3) 

OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(I} Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

The Management is very much cautious for minimizing/eliminating any losses in energy consumption. With such watch, 

the consumption of electricity and its cost is absolutely under control. 

a. Energy Conservation measures taken:

• Conducting Energy Audit to identify areas of energy wastage and opportunities for improvement.

• Ensure regular maintenance of Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems to keep them running

efficiently.

• Company has installed LED lighting systems throughout the Company premises as a measure of energy

conservation.

• Close monitoring of consumption of electricity, diesel and water.

• Optimum use of Energy by Switching off Machines, Lights, Fans, Air Conditioners and Exhaust Systems whenever

not required.

• Creating awareness among employees to conserve energy. 

b. lmpactofmeasures:

• We replaced worn out insulation in the Chilled Water Pipelines and Heat Exchanges (Condensers) in Vacuum

Drying Cabinets (VDCs). This has arrested Power Loss in the transmission lines for the said Equipment.

• We have replaced from Oil base to Water base in voes (2 Nos.) This has resulted in appreciable Cost saving. In

addition, we have saved costof0.5 kw power consumption per hourperVOC.

• Due to measures taken as described above, visible drop in the overall power and fuel oil consumption has resulted.

c. Details of total energy consumption:

Sr. No. Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022 

1 Total Electricity Consumption in unit (kwh) 15,22,313 13,52,803 

2 Expenditure on Electricity per annum (Rs in lakhs) 135.55 110.04 

3 Rate of Electricity per unit (In. Rs) 8.90 8.13 

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The manufacturing unit purchases power from respective State Electricity Board. Steps are taken on a continuous basis

to ensure optimal utilization of power.

(iii)The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

The energy conservation equipments, wherever installed. are replaced at intervals to ensure their run at the best

capacity and benefit.

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company has its own Quality Assurance Department which is equipped with instruments of latest technology for

testing quality of raw material, finished goods etc. Focus is always on new ideas and innovation to support existing

business.
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Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: 
-Establishment of standardized and improved manufacturing processes
-Continued modernization of analytical techniques

Company actively scouts for new technologies and keep a close eye on technological advancements in their industry. 
Company invests in training and skill development programs to ensure that their employees are competent in 
using and managing the new technologies. 

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
• We have cautiously but successfully optimized Charge Loading in our furnaces Network, resulting in Direct Cost

saving In the running of these furnaces.
• Focus on efficiency optimization has contributed on obtaining the targeted operations. It is also kept in view that the

cost of production does not go beyond the appropriate level.

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year): - Not Applicable

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D):
Expenditure on In-House R & D, as and when incurred, is debited to the respective head ofexpenses in Statement of
Profit and Loss. During the year under review, Expenditure on R & Dis Nil.

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of Foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as under:

Sr. No. Particulars 

1. Foreign Exchange earnings (actual inflows)

2. Foreign Exchange expenditure (actual outflows)

(Rs in Lakhs) 

2022-2023 2021-2022 

5.92 1.75 

600.94 552.55 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date : August 05, 20.23 
Place : Ankleshwar 
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Chairman 
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Abhishek V. Gami 
Managing Director 
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ANNEXURE-D 

Secretarial Audit Report 

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and 

Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015J 

The Members, 
RAPICUTCARBIDES LIMITED 

119, GIDC Industrial Area, 
Ankleshwar- 393 002, 
Gujarat. 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Rapicut Carbides Limited rcompany"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided 

us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that, in our opinion, the Company has, during the 

audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 ("review period"), complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and Compliance-Mechanism in place to the extent, 

In the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Fonns and Returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the review period, according to the provisions of: 

i. Companies Act. 2013 ("Act'') and the rules made thereunder;

1i. The Securities Contracts (Regulation)Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

Act, 1992:-

a. SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; However, there were no actions/ events

pursuant to these regulations, hence not applicable.

b. SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011;

c. SEBI (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; However, there were no actions I events pursuant to these

regulations, hence not applicable.

d. SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; However, there were no actions/

events pursuant to these regulations, hence not applicable.

e. SEBI ( Prohib.ition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

f. SEBI (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client;

g. SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 / 2021; However, there were no actions/ events pursuant to

these regulations, hence not applicable.

h. SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;
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i. SEBJ (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertlble Securities) Regulatfons, 2021; However, there were no actions/ events
pursuant to these regulations, hence not applicable.

j. SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993; However, there were no actions / events pursuant to these
regulations, hence not applicable.

We have also examined compliance with the appHcable Clauses/ Regulations ofthefollowing:-

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and

ii. Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines. Standards, etc. as mentioned above. 

We further report that; 

A. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the
review period.

8. Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and'
clarification on the Agenda items before the meeting and for meaningfu I participation at the meeting;

C. As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded;

D. There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations ot the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all the applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines;

E. During the period under review, there were no specific instances I actions in pursuance of the above referred Laws,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc., having major bearing on the Company's affairs.

S.Samdani
Partner
Samdani Shah & Kabra
Company Secretaries
FCS No. 3677; CP No. 2863 

ICSI Peer Review# 1079/2021 
ICSI UOIN:F003677E000413647 

Place : Vadodara I Date : May 29, 2023 

This Report is ta be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix A and farms an integral part af this report 
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The Members, 

RAPICUT CARBIDES LIMITED 

119, GIDC Industrial Area, 

Ankfeshwar-393 002, 

Gujarat, India. 

Appendix A 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter, that: 

i. Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, RUies,

Regulations, Standards is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the

verification and audit of procedures and records on test basis. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

secretarial records and compliances based on such verification and audit.

ii. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the

correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are

reflected in secretarial records and we believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

iii. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the Compliance of Laws, Rules and

Regulations, happening of events, etc.

iv. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the Company's affairs.

S.Samdani
Partner
Samdani Shah & Ka bra
Company Secretaries
FCS No. 3677; CP No. 2863

ICSI Peer Review# 1079/2021 
ICSI UDIN:F003677E000413647 

Place:. Vadodara I Date: May 29, 2023 
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I NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To 

The Members of 

Rapicut Carbides Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have aud ited the accompanying Financial Statements of Rapicut Carbides Limited ("the Company"), which comprise 

the Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended , and notes to the Financial Statements, 

includ ing a summary of significant Accounting Policies and other exp lanatory i nformation {hereinafter referred to as "the 

Fi nancial Statements"). 

I n  our opinion and to the best of our i nformation and accord ing to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financia l 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 201 3  ("the Act") in the manner so requ ired and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the Ind ian  Accounting Standards specified under section 1 33 of the Act read with the Companies 

( I nd ian Accounti ng Standards) Rules , 20 1 5, as amended, ( " Ind AS") and other accounti ng principles generally accepted in 

India , of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3 1 , 2023, and total comprehensive income (compris ing of profit and 

other comprehensive income) ,  changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Aud iting (SAs) specified under 

section 1 43( 1 0 ) of the Act. Our responsibi l ities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibi l i ties 

for the Audit of the financial statements section of ou r report. We are independent of the Company in aocordance with the Code 

of Eth ics issued by the I nstitute of Chartered Accountants of I ndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fu lfil led our 

other ethical responsibi l i ties in accordance with these requ irements and the Code of Ethics. We bel ieve that the aud it 

evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our aud ft opinion . 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for preparation of the other information . The other information comprises the 

information incl uded in the Board's Report incl ud ing Annexures to Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis and 

Shareholder's I nformation but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon . The above-referred 

information is expected to be made avai lable to us after the date of th is audit report. 

Our opin ion on the fi nancial statements does not cover the other i nformation and we do not express any form of assu rance 

concl usion thereon . 

I n  connection with our aud i t  of the financia l statements, our responsibi l ity is to read the other information and , i n  doing so, 

consider whether the other information is materia l ly inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obta ined in 

the audit or otherwise appears to be material ly m i sstated . 

When we read the information ,  if we conclude that there is a material misstatement there in ,  we a re required to communicate 

the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions necessitated by the circumstances and the 

appl icable laws and regu latlons. 

Responsibi l ities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 1 34(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financ ia l  position , financia l  performance , tota l 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounti ng princip les 
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generally accepted in I nd ia ,  incl udi ng the I ndian Accounti ng Standards ( Ind AS) prescri bed under section 1 33 of the Act. This 

responsibi l ity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other i rregularities; selection and 

appl ication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fi nancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounti ng records,  relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financia l 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materia l  misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's abil ity to continue as a going 

concern , d isclosing , as appl icable, matters related to going concern and us ing the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to l iquidate the Company orto cease operations , or has no real istic alternative but to do so . 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financia l  reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibi l ities for the Aud it of the F i nancial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materia l 

m isstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opin ion. Reasonable assu rance 

Is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an aud it conducted in  accordance with SAs wil l a lways detect a materia l 

misstatement when it exists . Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, i nd ividual ly or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influehce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements .  

As part of  an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the aud it .  We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financia l  Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform aud it procedures respohsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion . The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one result ing from error, as fraud may involve col lusion, forgery, intentional omtssions , misrepresentations, or the

override of in ternal contro l .

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aud i t  in order to design aud i t  procedures that a re appropriate

in the ci rcumstances. Under section 1 43(3)( i }  of the Act, we are a lso responsib le for expressing our opinion on whether

the Company has adequate internal financia l  controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosu res made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and , based on the aud it

evidence obtained ,  whether a materia l uncertainty exists related to events or condi tions that may cast significant doubt

on the Company's abi l ity to cont inue as a going concern . If we concl ude that a material uncertainty exists , we are

requ i red to draw attention i n ou r auditor's report to the related dtsclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate , to modify our opin ion .  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the

date of our audi'tor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the overal l  presentation ,  structu re and content of the Financial Statements , includ ing the d isclosures, and

whether the Financial Statements .represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation .
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in • Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and: obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are ,in agreement with the books of
account;

( d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act;

( e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March '31, 2023, taken on reco,rd by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a Director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in uAnnexure B";

(g) With respect to the other matters ,to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;
and;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31. 2023 for

which there were any material foreseeable losses;

Iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

lv (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 

either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 

funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or 

entity, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries'
1
) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or

entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wr1ting or

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether1 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and, (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting software which has a feature of

recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company from Financial Year beginning April 1, 2023

and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable

for the Financial Year 2022-2023.

For KC Mehta & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829 

Chhaya M. Dave 

Partner 

Membership No. 1.00434 

UDIN: 23100434BGXKNS4711 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: May 29, 2023 
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"ANNEXURE-A" 

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors' Report to the members of Rapicut Ca rbides Limited ("the Company") 
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31 , 2023 , we report that: 

i .  (a) (A) The Company has maintai ned proper records showing ful l  particu lars including quantitative detai ls and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing fu l l  part1culars of intahgible assets.

( b )  The Company has  a regular program of physical verification of  Property, Plant and  Equipment which in our opinion 
is reasonable , The assets wh ich were to be covered as per the saiq program have been physically verified by the 
Management during the Year. In our opin ion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us ,  no 
materia l  discrepancies were noticed on such verification . 

(c) According to the information and expla nations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
Company, the tit le/ lease deeds of al l  the immovable properties (other than p roperties where the Company is the
lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the Financial Statements
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its PPE or intangible assets or both duri ng the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not appl icab le to the Company.

(e) No proceed ings have been in i tiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 3 1 , 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibit ion) Act, 1 988 (as amended in 201 6) and
rules made thereunder.

I i .  (a) I n  our opin ion and accord ing to the information and e.xplanations given to us ,  physical verification of inventory has
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management. In our opi nion the coverage and procedu re of such
verification by the Management is appropriate and d iscrepancies noticed were not i n  excess of 1 0% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory and same have been properly dealt with in the Books of Account.

(b ) Accordi ng to the i nformation and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital l im its 
in excess of five crore rupees , i n  aggregate , from Banks on the basis of security of cu rrent assets. The Company 
submitted prel iminary Quarterly Returns in itia l ly, thereafter the Company had :resubmitted the Quarterly Returns 
with final numbers which are in ag reement with the Books of Accounts of Company. 

i i i , The Company has not made investment in ,  provided any guarantee or secu rity or granted any loans, or advance in 
nature of loans,  secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, L imited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in 
register maintained under section 1 89 of Companies Act, 201 3 and tt,erefore, reporting under th is clause of the order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

iv . In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not provided any
guarantees or security to the parties covered under section 1 85 of the Act and the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 1 85 and 1 86 of the Act in respect of the loans granted and investments made.

v. Accord ing to the information and explanations g iven to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts
which are considered to be deemed deposits during the year, hence di rectives issued by the Reserve Bank of I ndia and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder
are not appl icable to the Company. According to information and explanations provided to us, no order has been passed
by Company Law Board or Nationa l Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank  of India or any court or any other tribunal .

vi. Accord ing to the i nformation and explanations given to us, in view of Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records .and Audit)
Amendments Rules 20 1 4 , the maintenance of Cost Records under sub-section (1 } of section 1 48 of the Companies Act,
201 3 ,  is not appl icable to the Company and therefore , reporting under cl ause (v i )  of the order is not appl icable to the
Company.
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v I .  (a ) According to the ihformation and ex:planat ons given to us and on the bas s of oui- exarmnatioh of the records of the 
Company, the Company has been regular in depositi ng with appropriate authorities undisputed Statutory Dues, 
including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employee's State I nsu rance, I ncome-Tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other Statutory Dues appl icable to it. Further, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund , employee's state insurance, 
income tax, value added tax. cess and any other Statutory Dues were in arrears , as at March 31 , 2023, for a period 
of more than six months from the date they become payable. 

(b) According to information and explanations g iven to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the re are no d isputed statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a ) above wh ich have not been deposited
as on March 31 , 2023 on account of any disputes .

vi i i . There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year  in the assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1 96 1  (43 of 1 96 1 ).

ix. (a ) According to the i nformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowing or in the payrnent of interest to 
any lender during the yea r. 

(b) According, to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of aud it procedu res, we report that the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any Bank or Fi nancial Institution or Government or any
Government Authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term loans at the beginning
of the year, and hence reporting under clause 3( ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d ) On an overa l l  examina1ion of the Fi nancial Statements of the Company, funds raised on short�term basis have not 
been used during the yea r for long-term purposes by the Company. 

(e) The Company does not have any Subsidiaries , Associates or Joint Ventures and hence reporting, under clause
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not appl icable to the Company.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and therefore reporting or, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable.

x. (a ) The Company has not raised any money by way of I nit ia l Public Offer or Further Publ ic Offer ( including debt
instruments) during the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not appl icable to the 
Company. 

(b) Duri ng the yea r, the Company has not made any Preferential Allotment or Private Placement of Shares or
Convertible Debentures (ful ly or partly or optional ly), and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xL (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanations giveh to us, no fraud by the Company 
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year; 

(b) No report under sub-section ( 1 2) of section 1 43 of the Companies Act has been f i led in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 1 3  of Companies (Aud it and Auditors) Rules, 20 1 4  with the Central Government, during the year  and
upto the date ofthis Report;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whist le-blower
complaints duri ng the year.

xi i . The Company is not a Nidh i  company, and hence reporting under clause 3(xi i )  of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

xi i i . I n  our opinton and according to the information and explanations g iven to us and based on our examination of  the records
of the Company, all transactions with the Related Parties are in compliance with Section 1 77 and 1 88 of the Act where
appl icable and the detai ls have been d isclosed in the standalone Financial Statements as requ i red by the appl icable IND
AS.
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xv. (a) In our opihion and according to the lnformat on and explanations given to us, the Company has an Internal Audit
System commensurate with the size and nature of its business; 

(b) We have considered, the Internal Audit Reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and
till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered
rnto any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its Directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) In our opinion, there is no core Investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

xvii. The Company has incurred Cash Losses during the Financial Year covered by our audit is 52.46 Lakhs, but the Company
has not incurred Cash Losses during the immediately preceding Financial Year

xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors during the year.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the Financial Ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of Financial Assets and payment of Financial Liabllities, other information accompanying the
Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the Audit Report that Company is not capable of meeting its Liabilities
existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the Audit Report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

xx. According to the information and explanation given to us, section 135 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and
therefore, reporting under this clause of the order of not applicable to the Company.

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and therefore, reporting under this clause of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For KC Mehta & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829 

Chhaya M. Dave 

Partner 

Membership No. 100424 

UOIN: 23100434BGXKNS4711 

Place: Vadodara 

Date: May 29, 2023 
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"ANNEXURE-B" 

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Lega l  and Regulatory Requ irements' section of our report to the 

Members of Rapicut Carbides Lim ited on the fi nancial statements of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub section 3 of 

Section 143 of theAct. 

We have aud ited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Rapicut Carbides Limited nhe 

Company") as of March 3 1 , 2023 , in conj unction with our aud it of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

on that date. 

Management's Responsibi lity for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establ ishing and maintaini ng internal' financial controls based on the internal 

control over financia l report ing criteria established by the Company consideri ng the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of In ternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of I ndia (W ICAi") .  These responsib i l ities include the design , implementation and maintenance of 

adequate i nternal financial controls that were operati ng effectively for ensuri ng the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business ,  incl udi ng adherence to company's pol icies, the safeguard ing of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of rel iable financial 

i nformation, as required under the Act. 

Aud itors' Responsibil ity 

Our responsibi l ity is to express an opin ion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

based on our audit .  We conducted ou r audit in accordance with the Gu idance Note on Audit of Internal Financia l Controls over 

Financia l Reporting (the, "Guidance note") and the Standards on Auditi ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(1 0) of the Companies Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of inte rna l financia l controls, both applicable to an 

aud it of In ternal Financial Control s and,  both issued by the ICAI . Those Standards and the Guidance Note requ i re that we 

comply with eth ica l  requ i rements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were establ ished and mai ntained and if such controls 

operated effectively in al l  material respects . 

Our aud it i nvolves perform ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the interna l  financial controls with 

reference to financial statements and their operati ng effectiveness. Our aud it of in ternal financial controls with reference to 

financia l statements included obtain ing an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists , and testing and evaluat in9 the design and operating effectiveness of 

internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, includ ing the 

assessment of the risks of materia l  misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obta ined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our aud it opinion on the 

Companyts internal financial controls with reference to fi nancial statements .  

Meaning of  I nterna l  F inancial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A Company's Internal financia l controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasohable 

assurance regard ing the rel iabi l ity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with genera l ly accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements incl udes those pol ic ies and procedures that ( 1 ) perta in to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai l ,  
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accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispos tions of the assets of the Company; (2) prov de reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 

authorisations of Management and Directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 

timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentlal 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For KC Mehta & Co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 106237W/W100829 

Chhaya M. Dave 

Partner 
Membership No. 100434 

UDIN: 23100434BGXKNS4711 

Place: Vadodara 
Date: May 29, 2023 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

SR. 
PARTICULARS 

NO. 

ASSETS 

(1) Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plan! and Equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Other Intangible assets 
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 

(e) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(f) Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets 

(2) Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Other bank balances 
(iv) Others Financial Assets

(A) Security Deposits 
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(d) Otner current assets 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) other Equity

Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 

(1) Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(b) Non Current Provisions 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities 

(2} Current liabif{ties 
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

(A) due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(B) due to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Short term Provisions
Total current liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K C Mehta & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Cht'laya M. Dave 
Partner 
Membership No. 100434 

Place : Vadodara 

Dhananjay D Kanitkar 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03523774 

Vinay C. Sura 
Chief Financial Officer 
PAN : AGTPS9446B 

NOTE 
NO. 

6 
7 
8 

9 
10 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 

18 
19 

20 
21 

22 

23 
24 

25 

26 

27 
28 
29 
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�in Lakhs) 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

435.74 396.18 
40.31 34.47 

0.36 2.18 

13,26 10.82 
28.10 28.73 
20.21 35.98 

- 33.88 
537.98 542.23 

1,751.61 1,578.03 

1,042.45 1,040.86 
6.11 �.83 

25.90 29.74 

0.45 0.45 
31.09 29.91 
16.75 7.52 

2,874.36 2,688.34 
3,412.34 :3,230.57 

537.12 537.12 
1,604.72 1,708.90 
2,141.84 2,246.03 

1.20 3.16 
105.61 123,81 

0.07 0.07 
106.88 127.04 

341.40 214.06 

341.89 500]9
318.11 ,.69

68.85 106.99 
78.59 17.76 
14.79 16.21 

1,163.61 857.50 
3,412.34 3,230.57 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Abhishek V. Gaml 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07570948 

Kamal P. Soni 
Company Secretary 
M. No. : A66843



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 
�In Lakhs) 

SR. 
PARTICULARS 

NO. 

I Revenue from operations 

II Other income 

Ill Total Income (1+11) 

IV E.xpenses

(a) Cost of materials consumed

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade

and work-in-progress

(c) Employee. benefits expense

(d) Finance costs

(e) Depreciation. and amortisation expense

(f) Other ex:penses

Total expenses (IV) 

V Profit/Closs) before tax (Ill-IV) 

VI Tax expense 

(a) Current tax

(b) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 

(c) Deferred tax

VII Profit /(loss) for the period (V-VI) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 

A (i) Items Iha! will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(ii) Income tax relating to Items that will not be 

reclassified to profit or loss

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Vll+VIII) 

X Earnings per Equity Share 

Basic & Diluted {in Rs.) 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to 

Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K C Mehta & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants Dhananjay D Kanitkar 

NOTE 
NO .. 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 
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Partner 

Chairman & Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03523774 

Membersh p No. 100434 

Place : Vadodara 
Date : May 29, 2023 

Vinay C. Sura 
Chief Frnancial Officer 
PAN : AGTPS9446B 
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For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

3,957.26 3,613.64 

0.57 3.34 

3,957.84 3,616.98 

2,835.48 2,724.75 

153.86 (153.26) 

474.05 520.92 

29.28 12.84 

60.20 66.84 

517.62 508.73 

4,070.49 3,680.83 

(112.65) (63.85) 

- -

0.52 0.27 

22.07 41.45 

l135.25) (105.56) 

2A.16 (1.37) 

6,31 0.23 

- -

{104.18) {106.71) 

(2.52) (1.97) 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Abhishek V. Gaml 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07570948 

Komal P. Soni 
Company Secretary 
M. No. : A66843



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 (tin Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year Ended 31st For the Year Ended 31st 
March, 2023 March, 2022 

(Audited) (Audited) 
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(Loss) before tax (112.65) (63.85) 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 60.20 66.84 
Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment sold/discarded 0.04 (0.19) 
Interest Paid 24.30 12.84 
Interest Income (0.44) (1.39) 
Dividend received (0.04) (0.07) 
S1.1ndry balances written off 1.91 (1.67) 
Upward Revaluation of Investment (2.44) -

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss (Net) 0.00 (0.03) 
Operating Profit before changes in working capital (29.13) 12.50 

Adjustment for (lncrease)/Decrease in Operatii,g Assets 
Inventories (173.58) (112.98) 
Trade 'Receivables (2.87) (333.98) 
Other Financial Assets 2.65 6.12 
Other Assets (10.41) 4.69 

Adjustment for lncrease/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities 
Trade .Payables ,157.5,1 (54.37) 
Provisions (19.62) 39.14 
Other Liabilities 47.44 (13.61) 
Other Financial Liabilities (1.96) 1.63 

Cash flow from operations after changes In working capital (29.96) (450.85) 
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded 1.1'8 (1.18) 

Net Cash Flow from/(used In) Operating Activities (28.78) (452.03) 
[BJ CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital 
Advances & CWIP (98 .. 42) (58.76) 
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 28.47 7.50 
Interest Income 0.44 1.39 

Dividend received 0.04 0.07 
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents . 1.17 

Net Cash Flow from/(used In) Investing Activities (69.46) (48.63) 
[CJ CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

(Repayment)/ addition of Borrowings 127.34 210.75 
Finance cost (24.83) (12.84) 

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 102.51. 197.92 
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.27 (302.75) 
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of year (see Note 1) 1.83 304.58 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year (see Note 1) 6.11. 1.83 

Notes: 
1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of: 

Cash on Hands 0.39 0.72 
Balance with Bank.s 

In Current Accounts 5.72 1.11 
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated 6.11 1.83 

2 F(gures of the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K C Me.hta & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Chhaya M. Dave 
Partner 
Membership No. 100434 

Place : Vadodara 
Date : May 29, 2023 

Dhananjay D Kanitkar 
Chairman & �on-Executive Director 
DIN: 03S23774 

Vinay C. Sura 
Chief Financial Officer 
PAN : AGTPS9446B 
Place : Ankleshwar Date : May 29, 2023 
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For and on behalf of the Board 

Abhishek V. Gaml 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07570948 

Komal P. Soni 
Company Secretary 
M. No. : A66843 



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars 
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 
Changes in Equity share capital due to prior period errors 
Restated balance as at 1st April, 2021 
Additions/(Reductions) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 
Balance as at 1st April, 2022 
AdditJonsl(Reductions) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 

B. Other Equity

Reserve & Surplus 

Particulars 
Capital 

Securities 

Reserve 
Premium 

Reserve 

Balances as at 31st March, 2021 

Movement during the year: 

Profit for t ne period 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax * 

Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment in equity instrument carried through 

OCI, net of income tax 

Balances as at 31st March, 2022 

Moveme11t during the year: 

Profit for the period 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of income tax* 

Net fair value gain/(loss) on Investment in equity instrument carried through 

OCI, net of income tax 

Balances as at 31st March, 2023 

• Represents remeasurement gain/(loss) on the Defined Benefit Plans

Significant Accounting Policie� and Notes to Financial Statements 

As per our report of even date attaclied 

For K C Mehta & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants Dhananjay D Kanitkar 

29.06 

-

-

-

29.06 

-

. 

-

29.06 

1-43

Chhaya M. Dave 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03523774 

Partner 
Membership No. 100434 

Place : Vadodara 

Vinay C. Sura 
Chief Financial Officer 
PAN : AGTPS944$B 

127.16 

-

-

-

127.16 

-

. 

-

127.16 

Date : May 29, 2023 Ptace : Ankleshwar Date : May 29, 2023 
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Other 

Reserve 

(General 

Reserve) 

530.00 

. 

-

-

530.00 

. 

. 

-

530.00 

(tin Lakhs) 

:1 Amount 
537.12 

. 

537.12 
-

537.12 
537.12 

. 

537.12 

� in Lakhs) 

Other Items of 

other 

Retained comprehensive 

Earnings Income Total 

1,212.38 (85.27) 1,813.32 

(105.56) - (105.56)
- (1.29) (1.29)

- 2.43 2.43 

1,106.82 (84.13) 1,708.89 

(135.25) . (135.2S) 
. 28.63 28.63 

. 2.44 2.44 

971.57 (53.06) 1,604.71 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Abhishek V. Gami 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07570948 

Komal P. Soni 
Company Secr-ettuy 
r.t. No. : A66843 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH 2023 

Note No. 1 .  

1 .  Corporate Information 

The Financia l Statements of "Rapicut Carbides Limited'' ("the Company") are for the year ended 3 1 st March 2023. 

Rapicut Carbides Limited (RCL) was incorporated as a Public Limited Company in Apri l 1 977, and Commercial 
Production Commenced in October 1 979. 

The Company is a domestic Publ ic Limited Company incorporated and domici led in I ndia and has its Registered Office 

at1 1 9, G IDC I ndustria l Area, on National H ighway BOM-AHM, Ankleshwar, Guja rat. The Company's shares are l isted 

and traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd . (BSE). The Company is engaged in business of manufacturing of 

Tungsten Carbide products used in Meta l  Cutti ng , Min ing ,  Wear Parts and various other I ndustries. 

Gujarat Dri l lwel l Private Limited promoted with technica l knowhow provided by RCL was merged with the Company i n  

the year 1 993.  

New Standards/ amendments and other changes effective Apri l 1 ,2023 

IND AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

The amendments requ ire companies to disclose their Materia l Accounting Pol icies rather than the i r  Significant 

Accounting Pol icies . Accounti ng pol icy information, together with other information,  is material when It can reasonably 

be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general pu rpose Financial Statements. The Company does not 

expect this amendment to have any sign ificant impact in its F inancial Statements. 

IND AS 1 2 - Income Taxes 

The amendments clarify how Compan ies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 

decommissioning , restoration and simi lar obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition 

exemption in paragraphs 1 5  and 24 of I nd AS 1 2  (recognition exemption) so that it no longer appl ies to transactions that. 

on init ial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company has eval uated the 

amendment and there is no impact on its Financial Statement. The amendments clarify how Companies account for 

deferred tax on transactions such as leases. 

IND AS 8 -Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

The amendments wi l l  help entit ies to distinguish between Accounting Policies and Accounting estimates. The definition 

of a change in Accounttng estimates has been replaced with a definition of Aocounti ng estimates. Under the new 
definition , Accounting estimates are "Monetary Amounts in Fi nancial Statements that are subject to measurement 

uncerta inty" . Entities develop Accounti ng estimates if Accounting Pol icies require items in Financial Statements to be

measured i n  a way that involves measurement uncertai nty. The Company does not expect th is amendment to have any

significant impact in its Financial Statements."

2.. Basis of Preparation of F inancial Statements 

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind ian Accounti ng Standards {here tnafter 

referred to as the ' I nd AS'} as notified by Min istry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 1 33 of the Companies Act, 

20 1 3 read with Rule 3 of the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 1 5 and Companies ( I ndian Accounting 

Standards)Amendment Rules. 20 1 6 . 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual and going concern basis 

except for certain Financial Instruments that are measured at Fair Values / Amortized Cost I Net Present Value at the end 

of each reporting period . The Accounting Pol icies are appl ied consistently to al l  the periods presented in the Financial 

Statements.  Al l Assets and Liabil ities have been classified as current or non-cu rrent as per the Company's normal 

operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division I I  of Schedule I l l  to the Companies Act, 201 3 .  Based on the 

natu re of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 

equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the pu rpose of current or non-current 

classification of Assets and Liabi l it ies. 
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The Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2023 were approved for fssue in accordance 
with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 29th May, 2023. 

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's presentation and 
functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

3. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, which gives highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs. 

Level 1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or Liability either directly or indirectly. 
Level 3-Valuation techniques for inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and:risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

4. Statement of Compliance

The Comparative Financial, Statements comprising Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of
Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement, together with the Notes to accounts along with a summary of the significant
Accounting Policies and other explanatory information for the Year ended 31st March 2023, have been prepared in
accordance with the Ind AS notified above. For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March 2018, the
Company prepared its Financial Statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under the section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

4.1. Basis of Measurement - Historic Cost Convention: 

These Financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
• Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial

instru merits);
• Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost incurred for sale;
• Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value. All assets and liabilities have been classified as

current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other Criteria set out in the Schedule Ill
to the Companies Act, 2013.
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4.2. Use ofEstimates: 
The preparation of Financial Statements i n  accordance with Ind -AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for 
some items, wh ich m ight have an effect on their recognition and measurement i n  the Ba lance Sheet and Statement 

of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts real ized may differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates could 
change from period to period . Actual results could d iffer from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 

made as the management becomes aware of changes i n  circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences 
between the actual resu lts and estimates are recogn ized in the period in whlch the results are known /materialized 

and,  if material , the i r  effects are d isclosed in the notes to the Financia l Statements. 

4.3. Critical accounting judgments, assumptions and Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 
The preparation of the Company's Financial Statements requ i res mana.gement to make judgments, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabil ities , and the accompanying 
disclosu res ,  and the disclosure of conti ngent l iabilities at the date of the Financial Statements . Estimates and 
assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors, i ncluding 
expectations of future events that are bel ieved to be reasonable under the ci rcumstances. Uncertainty about these 

assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or l iabi l ities affected in futu re periods. 

Key source of judgments, assumptions and estimates in the preparat ion of the Financial Statements which may 

cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and l iabi l ities within the next financial year, are i n  
respect of usefu l l ives of  Property, Plant and Equipment, impa irment, employee benefit obligations, provisions, 

provision for income tax, measu rement of deferred tax assets and contingent assets & l iabil ities. 

I nformation about estimates and assumptions that have the sign ificant effect on recogn ition and measu rement of 

assets, l iabi l ities , income and expenses is provided below. Actual resu lts may differ from these estimates. 

(i) Determination of the estimated useful life of tang ible assets and the assessment as to which components
of the cost may be capital ized.
Usefu l life of tangible assets is based on the l ife prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 20 1 3. In cases,
where the useful l ife is different from that prescribed in Schedu le 1 1 ,  it is based on techn ical advice, tak ing into

account the nature of the asset, estimated usage and operating conditions of the asset, past h istory of replacement
and maintenance support. An assumption also needs to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset

may be capital ized and which components of the cost of the asset may be capital ized .

( i i} Recogn ition and measu rement of defined benefit obl igations: 
The cost of the defined benefit gratu ity plan and the present va lue of the gratuity obl igation are determined using 

actuarial valuations being carried out at reporting date. An actuaria l valuation involves making various assumptions 
that may differ from actual developments in the future . These i nclude the determ ination of the d iscount rate , Salary 

esca lation rate , expected rate of return on assetand mortality rates. Due to the complexities i nvolved in the 
va luation and its long-term natu re, a defined benefit obligation is h igh ly  sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 

All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date . 

The parameter most subject to change is the d iscount rate . I n  determ in ing the appropriate discount rate, the 
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the 
post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publ icly avai lable mortality tables for the specific 

countries . Those mortal ity tables tend to change only at i nterval in response to demographic changes. Future sa lary 

increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. 

(i i i) Recogn ition of income tax.es:
Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncerta in tax positions as also to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be recognized ,
based upon the l ikely timing and the level of future taxable profits.
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(iv) Recogn ition of Deferred tax assets:
Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) are recognized for a l l  the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit wil l  be available against which the deductible temporary d ifference can be uti l ized .
Management judgment is required to determ i ne the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized , based
upon the l ikely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

(v) Recogn ition and measurement of provisions :
Provisions and l iabi l ities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there wi l l be a futu re outflow of
funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be rel iably estimated . The t iming
of recognit ion and quantificat ion of the l iabi l ity requ ires the appl ication of judgment to existing facts and
circumstances, which can be subject to change.  ihe carrying amounts of provisions and liabil ities are reviewed
regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances .

(vi) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease :
At the i nception of an arrangement. the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease . At the
inception or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease , the Company separates payments and
other consideration requ i red by the a rrangement i nto those for the lease and those for the other elements based on
their relative fair va lues. If the Company concludes for a finance lease that, i t is impracticable to separate the
payments reliably, then an asset and a l i a bi l ity are recogn ized at an amount equa l to the fair value of the underlying
asset; subsequently, the .l iabi l i ty is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on the l iabi l ity is
recognized using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. In case of operating lease , the Company treats a l l
payments under the arrangement as lease payments.

(vi i) Conti ngent Liabil ities and Assets : 
Contingent l iabi l ities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relat ion to claims against the Company, 
incl uding legal ,  contractua l ,  land access and other claims. By their natu re, conti ngencies will be resolved only when 
one or rnore uncerta in futu re events occur or fai l to occur, The assessment of the existence ,  and potent ia l quantum,  
of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of s ignificant judgment and the use of estimates rega rding the 
outcome of f utu re events 

(vi i i )  Al lowance for impairment of trade receivable; 
The expected credit loss is ma in ly based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience. The 
receivables are assessed on an i nd iv idual basis assessed for impairment col lectively, depend ing on their 
significance. Moreover, trade receivables are written off on a case-to-case basis if deemed not to be col lectible on 
the assessment of the underlying facts and ci rcumstances. 

(Ix) Impai rment of non -financia l assets : 
Evaluation for impairment requires use of judgment, estimates and assumptions. 

The evaluation of applicabi l ity of i nd icators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external  factors 
(sign ificant decline in asset's va lue,  economic or legal envlronment, market i nterest rates etc . )  and internal factors 
(obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the idle assets etc . )  which could 
resu lt in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and Equ ipment and such assessment is 
based on estimates, futu re plans as envisaged by Company. 

4.4. Current versus Non-current classification: 

( i )  The assets aod l iab i lities i n  the Ba lance Sheet a re based on currenV non - current classification. 
An asset is current when it is: 
1 . Expected to be real ized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle. 
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trad ing .
3 .  Expected to be rea l ized with in twelve months after the reporti ng period , or
4. Cash or cash equ ivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a l iabi l ity for at least twelve

months after the reporti ng period . All other assets are classified as non - current.
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(ii) A liability is current when it is:

5. Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

6. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

7. Due to be settled within t welve months after the reporting period, or 

8. lhere rs no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other liabilities are treated as non - current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non - current 
assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

5. Significant Accounting Policies

5.1. Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) recognized 
as of April 1, 2016 (transition dale) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying vah.,1e as its deemed 
cost as on the transition date as per Para D7 AA of Ind AS 101. 

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) comprises of Tangible assets and Capital Work in progress. PPE are statedat 
cost, net of tax/duty credit availed, if any, after reducing accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any, until the date of the Balance Sheet. The cost of PPE comprises of its purchase price or its construction 
cost (net of applicable tax credit, if any), any cost directly attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition 
necessary forit to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Management. Direct costs are capitalized 
until the asset ls ready for use and includes borrowing cost capitalized in accordance with the Company's 
accounting policy. 

Capital work in progress includes the cost of PPE that are not yet ready for the intended use. 

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the 
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as 
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss. 

Depreciation is provided on the cost of Property, Plant and Equipment less their estimated residual value, using the 
straight-line method over the useful life of PPE as stated in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on 
internal technical evaluation. The management believes that the useful lives as assessed best represent the period 
over which management expects to use these assets. 

Useful lives of following class of PPE are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, 
which are as under: 

Asset Description Assets Useful life (in Years) 

Factory Building 30 

Building other than Factory Building 60 

Lease Hold Land 99 

Data Processing Equipment 6 

Plant and Machinery 10 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 

Vehicle 8 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed orr an annual basis and if 
necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. 

Depreciation on additions/deletions to PPE during the year is provided for on a pro-rata basis with reference to the 
date of additions/deletions. 
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Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other factors is 
provided for prospectively over the remaining useful l ife. 

5.2. l ntangible Assets 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its I ntangible assets recognized as of April 1 ,  20 1 6  
(transition date) measured a s  per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost a s  on the 
transition date as per Para D7 AA of Ind AS 1 0 1 . 

I ntangible assets with fi nite useful l ife acqui red separately, are recognized on·ly if it is probable that futu re economic 
benefits that are attributable to the assets wil l  flow to the enterprise and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. 
The intangib le assets are recorded at cost and are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses. if any. 

I ntangible assets are amortized over the estimated period of benefit, not exceed ing five years. 

I ntangible asset is derecognized on disposal , or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
d isposal . Gains or losses aris ing from derecogn ition of an intangible asset are determined as the d ifference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recogn ized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognized . 

I ntangible assets are amortized on Straight Line Method from the date they are avai lable for use, over the usefu l  
l ives of  the assets as estimated by the Management as under: 

Asset Description Assets Useful l ife (in Years} 

Software 5 

5.3. lmpairment of non-financia l assets 

lhe Company reviews at each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.  If any 
such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recove rable amount of 
the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit  to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying 
.amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss 
and is recogn ized in the Statement of Profit & Loss. If at the reporti ng period, there is an i ndication that there is 
change i n the previously assessed impairment loss, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is 
reflected at the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that is determined , net of depreciatioh , had 
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fai r  value less costs of d isposal and vaJue in use . In assessing va lue in use, the 
estimated futu re cash flows are d iscounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted. 

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period to see if there are any i ndications that impairment losses 
recognized earl ier may no longer exist or may have come down . The impa i rment loss is reversed., if there has beeo 
a change in the. estimates which has the effect of increasing the asset's recoverable amount si nce the previous 
impai rment loss was recognized . If it is so, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the lower of its 
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that has been determined, net of depreciation ,  had no impairment 
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. After a reversal ,  the depreciat ion charge is adjusted in future 
periods to a l locate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual val ue, on a systematic basis over its 
remain ing usefu l l ife. Reversa ls of Impa irment loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

5.4. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equiva lents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks which are short-term , highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash ,  and which are subject to insignificant 
risk. 
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5.5. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providtng for impairment and other losses. 
where considered necessary, The basis of determining the value of each class of inventory is as follows: 

Inventories Cost Formulae 

Lower of cost and net realizable value, However, 
materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below 
cost if the finished products in which they will be 
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. 

Raw Material, packing materials Cost is determined on a first-in-first out basis. 
Customs duty on imported raw materials (excluding 
stocks in the bonded warehouse) is treated as part of 
the cost of the inventories. Raw material, store and 
spares: Cost on FIFO basis or net realizable value, 
whichever is lower. 

Raw Material (Goods in transit) At invoice price 

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
Work -in-progress direct materials ahd labour and a proportion of 

manufacturing overheads based on normal 
operating capacity. 

At Cost, comprising of raw material cost, labour cost 

Finished Goods (Including in Transit) and appropriate proportion of manufacturing expenses 
and overheads. 

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
the purchase price and other associated costs directly 
incurred in bringing the inventory to its present location. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 

Traded goods ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale. 

Waste and Scarp 
Waste and scrap are not separately valued being 
insignificant in value. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs 
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

5.6. EmployeeBenefit 

(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund and Superannuation fund, a defined contribution scheme
and the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contributions to the
government funds are due. ihe Company has no obligation other than the contribution payable to provident
fund authorities and superannuation fund.

(ii} Defined Benefit Plan 

The employees' gratuity fund scheme is the Company's defined benefit plan. The present value of the 
obligation under the said defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation from an 
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The gratuity benefit of the Company is 
administered by a trust formed for this purpose through the group gratuity UC scheme. Re measurements 
comprising. of actuarial gain and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets ( excluding 
amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognrzed immediately in the balance 
sheet with a coFresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the 
period in which they occur. 

Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service cost is recoghized in the statement of profit & loss in the period of plan amendment. 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discounted rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
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( i i i )  Short Term Employee Benefits 
Accumulated leave, wh ich is expected to be util ized within the next 1 2  months, is treated as short-term 
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the addit ional amount 
that it expects to pay as a resu lt of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Short -
term employee benefits a re expensed as the related service is provided . A l iabi l ity is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid If the Company has a present lega l. or constructive obligation to pay this amount 
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obl igat ion can be estimated rel iably. 

(lv) Other Long Term Employee Benefits
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond 1 2  months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences a re provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected un it credit method at the year-end.  Actuarial gains/losses
are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred .

5.7. Fore.ign Exchange Transactions 
Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) a re recogn ized at 
the spot exchange rates prevai l ing at the dates of the transactions . At the end of each reporting period , monetary 
items denominated in foreign cu rrencies are translated usihg clos ing exchange rate prevail ing on the last day of 
the reporting period . 

Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of h istorica l  cost denominated i n  a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of transaction . 

Exchange d ifferences on monetary items are recogn ized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which 
they arise. 

5.8. Financial Instruments 
A financial i nstrument is any contract that g ives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial l iabi l ity or equity 
instrument of .another entity. 

Fi nancial assets and financial l iabi l it ies are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. 

a. Initial Recognition : 
Financial assets and Financial l iabi T ities are in it ial ly measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are d i rectly 
attributable to the acqu isition or issue of Financial assets and Financial l iabi l ities (other than Financial assets 
and Fi nancial l iabilities at Fai r Value through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
Financial assets or Financial liabi l it ies, as appropriate, on initial recogn ition . Transaction costs d irectly 
attributable to the acquisition of Financial assets or Fi nancial l iabi l it ies at fai r  va lue through profit or loss are 
recogn ized in the Statement of P rofit and Loss . 

b. Classification and Subsequent Measurement: F inancial Assets
The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measu red at amortized cost, fa1r value th rough
other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI" )  or  fa i r  value through profit or  loss ("FVTPL") on the basis of
fol lowing:

• the entity's busi ness model for managing the financial assets; and
• the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

c. Amortized Cost:
A financial asset shal l  be classified and measured at amortized cost, ff both of the fol lowing conditions are
met :

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financia l  assets in order to
col lect contractual cash flows , and

• the contractual terms of the financial asset g ive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principa l and interest on the principal amount outstanding .

d. Fa i r  Value th rough OCI :
A financial asset sha l l  be classified and measured at FVTOCI ,  if both of the fol lowi ng cond itions a re met:

• the financia l asset is held with in  a business model whose objective is ach ieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and sel l ing financial assets, and
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• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

e. Fair Value through Profit or Loss:

A financial asset shall be classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair 
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

f. Impairment offinancial assets:
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credftriskexposure:

a) Financial Assets are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Simplified Approach
The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
Receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition

General Approach 
For recognition of impairment loss on otner financial assets and risk exposL1re, the Company determines 
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has 
not increased significantly, 12-months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument 
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the 
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12�months ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 
of a financial instrument. The 12-months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default 
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

g. Trade receivables
A receivable is classified as a 'trade receivable' if it is in respect to the amount due from customers on account
of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business. T.rade receivables are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,
less provision for impairment. For some trade receivables the Group may obtain security in the form of
guarantee, security deposit or letter of credit which can be called upon if the counter party is in default under
tile terms of the agreement. Impairment is rnade on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of
the shortfalls over the expected life of financial assets. The estimated impairment losses are recognized in a
separate provision account and the impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
within other expenses.

For foreign currency trade receivable. impairment is assessed after reinstatement at closing rates.

Subsequent changes in assessment of impairment are recognized in provision for impairment and changes
in impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount of 
trade receivable and the amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other 
expenses. 

h. Oerecognition of financial assets:
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual right to receive the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
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the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor reta ins substantially al l  the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its reta ined i nterest in 
the .asset and an. associated l iabi l ity for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company reta ins substantia l ly al l  
the risks and rewards of ownersh ip of a transferred financia l  asset, the Company cont inues to recognize the 
financia l  asset and also recognizes a col lateral ized borrowing for the proceeds received. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the d ifference between the asset's carrying amount and 
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulat ive gain or loss that had been 
recogn ized in other comprehensive i ncome and accumulated in equity is recogn ized in profit or loss if such 
gain or loss wou ld have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

On derecognit ion of a financial asset other than in its enti rety (e .g . ,  when the Company retains an  option to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company al locates the previous carrying amount of the financia l 
asset between the part it continues to recognize under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer 
recogn izes on the basis of the relative fair va lues of those parts on the date of the transfer. The d ifference 
between the carrying amount a l located to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the 
consideration received for the part no longer recognized and any cumulative galn or loss a l located to it that 
had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognized i n  profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recogn ized in other comprehensive income is a l located between the part that conti nues to be 
recogn ized and the part that is no longer recogn ized on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. 

5.9. Classification and Subsequent Measu rement: Financial liabil ities : 

Financial l iabil ities are classified as either financial l iabi l ities at FVTPL or 'other financial l iabi l i ties'. 

a Financial Liabilities at FVTPL: 

Financial l iab i l ities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabi lity is held for trading or are designated 
upon i n itial recogn ition as FVTPL.
Gains or Losses on l iabi l i t ies held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Other Financial Liabi l i ties at amortized cost:
Other financial l iabi l ities ( includ ing borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method .

The effective in te rest method is a method of ca lculating the amortized cost of a financial l iabi l ity and of 
al locati ng interest expense over the relevant period . The effective ,interest rate is the rate that exactly 
d iscounts estimated fu ture cash payments (including al l  fees and points paid or received that form an in tegral 
part of.the effective interest rate , transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life 
of the financia l l iabil ity, or (where appropriate) a shorter period ,  to the net carrying amount on in itial 
recognition .  

c. Financial l iabil ities and equity instruments:
• Classification as debt or equity:

Debt and equ ity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financia l l iabi l i ties or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial l iab i l i ty
and an equity instrument.

• Equ ity i nstruments:
An equ ity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting al l  of its liabil ities.

Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognized at the proceeds received . 

d. Derecogn ition of financial Liabi l ities :
A financial l iabi l ity is derecognized when the obl igation under the l iabi l ity is discharged ot' cancel led or
expires. When an existing financial l iabil ity is replaced by another from the same lender on substantia lly
d ifferent terms, or the terms of an existing l iabi l ity are substantia l ly modified, such an exchange or
mod ification is treated as the derecognit ion of the orig inal l iab i l ity and the recognition of a new l iabi l ity. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss .
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e. Offsetting :

Financial assets and financial l iabi l ities a re offset, and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where
there is a legal ly enforceable right to offset the recogn ized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or rea l ize the asset and settle the liabil ity simul taneously.

5. 1 0. Share capital
Ordinary Shares: 

Ordinary shares are classified as equ ity. I ncremental costs d i rectly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary 
shares are recogn ized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

5 .11 . Leases 
As a lessee 

The Company's lease assets primari ly consist of leases for land.  The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or conta1ns, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration .  To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of. an  identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 
• the contract involves the use of an  identified asset.

- the Company has substant ia l ly a l l  the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period ofthe lease and
- the Company has the right to d i rect the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a lease l iabi l ity for all lease a rrangements i n  
which i t  is a lessee, except for leases with a term of  twelve months or  less (short-term leases) and low value leases 
and correspond ing Righ.t�of-use Asset. For these short4erm and low value leases, the Company recogn izes the 
lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-l ine basis over the term of the lease . 

The Right-of-use Assets are initial ly recognized at cost, which comprises the initia l amount of the lease liabi l ity 
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any i nitial di rect 
costs less any lease incentives . They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depredation and 
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease l ia bi l ity. 

Right-of-use Assets are depreciated on a straight- l ine basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful l ife of the 
underlying asset. 

The lease l iabi l ity is ln itial ly measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The 
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate impl icit in the lease or, if not readi ly determinable, using the 
incrementa l borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease l iabil i ties are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it wi l l  
exercise an extension or  a term i nation option . 

As a lessor 
The Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease . Whenever the terms of 
the lease transfer substantial ly all the risks and rewards of ownersh ip to the lessee, the contract is classified as a 
finance lease.  All other leases are classified as operating leases . 

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on straight l ine basis over the 
Lease term . 

5 .12. Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs are i nterest and ancil lary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. 

General and specific borrowing costs attributable to acqu isition and construction of qualifying assets is added to 
the cost of the assets upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use . A qual ifying asset is an asset that 
nec8$sarily takes a substantia l  period to get ready for its intended use Capital ization of borrowing costs is 
suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss du ring extended periods when active development 
activity on the qual ifying assets is interrupted . All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.  
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5.13. Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are 
segregated into operating, investing and financing activities. 

5.14. Income Taxes 

l ncome tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.
a. Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profrt for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is
calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

b. Deferred Ta.x

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is :probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying·amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed atthe end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilized. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax: rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end ofthe reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liab11ities. 

c. Current and Deferred Tax Expense for the Year

Current and deferred tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

5.15. Revenue Recognition 

The Company derives Revenue primarily from sale of manufactured and traded products being 'Tungsten 
Carbides Products". 

Revenues from sale of goods or services are recognized upon transfer of control of the goods or services to the 
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company ei<pects to receive in exchange for those 
goods or services. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable duly adjusted for variable 
consideration & customer's right to return the goods and the same represents amounts receivable for goods and 
services provided in the normal course of business. Revenue also excludes tax.es collected from customers. Any 
retrospective revision in prices is accounted for in the year of such revision. 

Revenue is recognized at a point in time on accrual basis as per the terms of the contract, when there is no 
uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration. When there is uncertainty as to measurement or 
ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. 
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The contract asset or a contract l iabinty is recognized when either party to a contract has performed, depending on 
the relationship between the entity's performance and the customer's payment. When the Company has a present 
unconditional right to considerat ion ,  it is recognized separately as a receivable. 
Sale of products excludes amounts of ind i rect taxes on sales . 
I nterest on investments is booked on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate 
of i nterest. 

Dividend income is recogn ized when the right to receive the same is establ ished . 

Other income is recogn ized on accrual basis except when realization of such income is uncertain .  
5. 1 6. Dividend

Provision is made in the accounts for the amount of any final dividend declared on the date of its approval by the 
shar�holders . Interim dividends, · if any, are recorded as a l iabi l ity on the date of its declaration by the Company's 
Board of Directors. 

5.17. Earnings Per Share 
Basic earn ings per share is computed by divid ing the profit / ( loss) after tax with the weighted average number of 
equity shares outstanding du ring the year. D i l uted earn ings per share is computed by dividing the profit / ( loss) after 
tax as adjusted for dividend , interest and other charges to expense or income ( net of any  attributable taxes) relating 
to the d i lutive potentia l equ ity shares, with the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earn ings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares wh ich could have been 
issued on the conversion of al l  d i lutive potential equ ity shares. 

5.18 .  Segment Reporting 
The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source , natu re of risks and returns and the 
internal organ ization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments for wh ich separate 
financial information is available and for Wh ich operating profit / loss amounts are eval uated regularly by the Ch ief 
Operat ing Decis ion Maki ng Body (CODM) in deciding how to al locate resources and in assessing performance. 

The Company operates in one reportable business segments i .e . ,  ''Tungsten Carbides Products". 

5.19 .  Provision, Conti ngent Liabilities and Conti ngent Assets 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation ( lega l or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, i t is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wil l  be required to settre the 
obligation ,  and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obi igation .  

The amount recogn ized as  a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period , taking i nto account the risks and uncertai nties surrounding the 
obligation . When a provision ,is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obl igation , it carrying 
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the t ime value of money is materia l ) .  If the time 
value of money is materia l ,  Provisions are d iscounted using pre-tax discount rate and when d iscount i ng is used , 
increase in the provision with the passa_ge of time is recogn ized as a finance cost in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss account 

A contingent l iabi l ity is (a ) a possible ob' l igation that arises from past events and whose existence wi l l  be confi rmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
entity or (b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because (i) it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying econom ic benefits will be requ ired to settle the obl igation or ( i i )  the amount of 
the obl igation cannot be measu red with sufficient reliabil ity. 

Contingent l iab i l it ies are disclosed i n  the Financia l  Statements by way of notes to accounts , un less possibi l ity of an  
outflow of  resources embodying economic benefit is remote . 
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence wil l  be confirmed only 
by the. occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more of uncertain future events not whol ly with in  the control of the 
entity. 

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of 
economic benefits is probable . 
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment

ft io Lakhs) 

Right-of-use 
FurniturePlant and Data Process 

Particulars I Assets Assets (Lease Building 
Machinery Equipments and Vehicles Total 

Hold land) Fixtures 

GROSS BLOCK 

As at 1st April, 2021 3.52 306.46 952.47 39.42 44.58 57.70 1.404.16 

Additions - - 10.76 1.98 1.27 10.30 24.30 

Deduction/ Adjustments - - - - - 7.32 7.32 

As at 31st March, 2022 3.52 306.46 963.23 41.40 45.85 60.68 1,421.14 

Additions - 35.29 65.23 1.10 3.87 0.92 106.41 

Deduction/Adjustments - - 0.68 •-· - 27.80 28.47 

As at 31st March, 2023 3.52 341.75 1,027.78 42.50 49.72 33.80 1,499.07 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

As at 1st April, 2021 1.54 135.84 744.25 31.02 20.11 26.65 959.41 

Charge for the year 0.04 7.38 46.69 2.76 3.52 5.17 65.55 

Deduction/Adjustments - - - - - - -

As at 31st March, 2022 1.58 143.22 790.94 33.77 23.62 31.81 1,024.95 

Charge for the year 0.04 6.39 40.45' 2.31 3.55 5.44 58.17 

Deduction/Adjustments - - 0.30 - - 19,50 19.79 

As at 31st March, 2023 1.62 149.61 831.09 36.08 27.17 17.75 1,063.33 

Net Block 

As at 31.st March, 2022 1.94 163.24 172.28 7.63 22.22 28.87 396.18 

As at 31st March, 2023 1.91 192.14 196.68 6.42 22.55 16.05 435.74 

Note: 

1) The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property Plant & Equipment (PPE)

recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying

value as its deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101.

2) The aggregate depreciation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense

in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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7. Capital work-in-progress
� in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2023 March, 2022 
Construction Work in Progress - Fixed Assets 
Balance as at beginning of the year 34.47 -

Add: Additions during the year 40.31 34.47 

Less: Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment 34.47 -

TOTAL 40.31 34.47 

7.1 Ageing Schedule of Capital work-In-progress (Projects in process}: 

As at 31st March 2023 � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 Years 

i) Projects in Progress 40.31 - -· - 40.31

ii) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

As at 31st March 2022 (� in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 Years 

i) Projects in Progress 34.47 - - - 34.47

ii) Projects temporarily suspended ,. - - - -

7.2 Completion Schedule of CWIP whose completion is overdue or has exceeded it's compared cost to it's original plan: 

As at 31st March 2023 � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
To be completed In 

Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3 Years 

Projects in progress 

i) Carburising & reduction project 40.31 - -·

ii) Others - - - -

Projects temporaril.y suspended - � - -

As at 31st March 2022 � in Lakhs) 

Particular:s 
To be completed in 

Less thar, 1 year 'f to 2 years 2 to 3 years More tl'!an 3 Years 

Projects in progress 

i) Project 1 34.47 - - -

ii) Others - - - -

Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
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8. Intangible Assets

� in Lakhs) 

Particulars /Asse-ts 
Technical Computer 

Total 
Knowhow Software 

GROSS BLOCK 

As at 1st April, 2021 - 30.98 30.98 

Additions - - -

Deduction/ Adjustments - - -

As at 31st March, 2022 - 30.98 30.98 

Additions - 0.21 0.21 

Deduction/ Adjustments - - -

As at 31st March, 2023 - 31.19 31.19 

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION 

As at 1st April 2021 - 27.51 27.51 

Charge for the year - 1.30 1.30 

Deduction/ Adjustments - - -

As at 31st March, 2022 - 28.80 28.80 

Charge for the year - 2.03 2.03 

Deduction/ Adjustments - -

As at 31st March, 2023 - 30.83 30.83 

Net Block 

As at 31st March, 2022 - 2.18 2.18 

As at 31st Mal'.ch, 2023 - 0.36 0.36 

1) The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2016

(transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the

transition date as per Para D7 AA of Ind AS 101.

2) The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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9. Investments

Particulars 

Investments in Equity Instruments (Note 9.1) 

Total 

9.1 Investments in Equity Instruments 

Particulars 

Investments in other entities (at F\fTOCI) 

(a) Investments In Unquoted Securities (at FVTOCI)

1 1581 (P.Y. 1,,581) equity shares of BEIL Infrastructure Ltd. 
(Formerly known as Bharuch Enviro Infrastructure Ltd.) 
(Fully paid up) (Face Value t10 per share) 

Total Investments in other entities 
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 

10. Financial Assets - Others

Particulars 

Security Deposits 
- Considered Good

Total 

11. Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Assets 

Total 

65 

� in Lakhs} 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

13.26 10.82 
13.26 10.82 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

13.26 10.82 

13.26 10.82 
13.26 10.82 

ft in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

28.10 28.73 
28.10 28.73 

� in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

20.21 35.98 
20.,21 35.98 



2022-23 
Major Components and Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities � in Lakhs) 

Recognized in Recognized in 

Particulars Opening Statement of Other Closing 
Balance Profit Comprehensive Balance 

and Loss Income 

Deferred tax liability on account of: 
Remeasurernent of Investment 2.15 1.01 (0.50) 2..65 
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 10.12 (1.42) . 8.70 
Total Deferred Tax- Liabilities 12.27 (0.42) (0.50) 11.35 
Deferred tax asset on account of: 
Provision for Doubtful debts 0.26 - - 0.26 
Unabsorbed Depreciation " 11.58 (11.58) - -

Provision for Gratuity 28.41 (10.11) 5.80 24.10 
Provision for Leave encashment 8.00 (0.79) - 7.21 
Total Deferred Tax Assets 48.25 {22.49) 5.80 31.57 
Net Deferred Tax 35.98 (22.07) (6.31) 20.21 

"As matter of prudence and in the absence of strong convincing evidence about availability of future taxable profits, 
deferred tax assets (OTA) on unused tax losses have been not recognised. 

2021-22 
Major Components and Reconciliation of Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities � in Lakhs) 

Recognized in Recognized in 

Particulars Opening Statement of Other Closing 
Balance Profit Comprehensive Balance 

and Loss Income 

Deferred tax liability on account of: 
Remeasurement of Investment 1.65 (0.01) 0.51 2.15 
Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets 0.19 9.94 - 10.12 
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 1.83 9.93 0.51 12.27 
Deferred tax asset on account of: 
Provision for Doubtful debts 0.26 . - 0.26 
Unabsorbed Depreciation 44.07 (32.49) - 11.58 
Provision for Gratuity 27.11 1.02 0.28 28.41 
Provision for Leave encashment 8.05 (0.05) - 8.00 
Total Deferred Tax Assets 79.49 (31.52) 0.28 48.25 
Net Deferred Tax 77.65 (41.45) 0.23 35.98 

12. Other Non Current Assets (tin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31.st March, 

2023 2022 

(Unsecured, Considered Good unless Otherwise Stated) 

Capital advances 

- Considered good - 33.88 

Total - 33.88 

13. Inventories * (fin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Raw Material 542.86 280.08 

Work in Progress 483.97 766.14 

Finished goods 350.12 221.81 

Stores and Spare parts 374.66 309.99 

Total 1,751.61 1,578.03 

"' Valuation of inventories are done as per point no. 5.5 of significant accounting policies. 
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14. Trade Receivables

Particulars 

Unsecured� Considered good 

Due from related Parties" 

Others 

Less: 

Allowance for expected credit losses (Refer Note 14.1) 

Total 

* Trade receivables includes:

Particulars 

Due by Company in which KMP is a Director 

14.1 Movement in Expected Credrt Loss Allowance: 

Particulars 

Balance at beginning of the year 

Balance at end of the year 

14.2 Ageing Schedule for Trade receivables 

2022-23 

Particulars U(lbilled 

i) Undisputed - considered good . 

ii) Undisputed - which have significant increase in credit risk -

iii) Undisputed - credit impaired . 

iv) Olsputed - considered good -

11) Disputed - which '1a11e significant increase in credit risk -

vi) Disputed - credit impaired -

Total I -

2021-22 

Particulars Unbilled 

i) Undisputed - cons1dered good -

ii) Undisputed - which have significanlincrease in credit risk -

iii) Undisputed• credit impaired -

iv) Disputed - considered good -

11) Disputed - which have significant Increase in credit risk -

vi) Disputed - credit impaired -

Total -

Not Due 

-

. 

. 

-

-

-

-

Not Due 

452.71 

-

-

-

-

-

452.71 
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(� in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

16.55 88.91 

1,026.90 952.94 

1,043.45 1,041.86 

1.00 1.00 

1,042.45 1,040.86 

� in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

16.55 88.91 

(� in Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
2023 2022 

1.00 1.00 

1.00 1.00 

� in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 months 1 to 2 2to3 More than Total 
6months to 1 year years years 3 years 

1,037.32 0.74 3.52 0.31 1.56 1,043.45 

- - - - . -

. . - - - . 

- - - . - -

- . . - - -

- . . - - -

1,037.32 0.74 3.52 0.31 1.56 1,043.45 

� in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 months 1 to2 2to 3 More than Total 
6months to 1 year years years 3 years 

557.26 29.60 0.32 0.75 1.21 1,041.86 

- - - - - -

- - - - - -

- -
.-

- - -

- . - - - -

- - - - - -

557.26 29.60 0.32 0.75 1.21 1,041.86 



15'. Cash and Cash Equivalents (� in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Balances with banks 

In current accounts 5.72 1.11 

Cash on hand 0.39 0.72 

Total 6.11 1.83 

1'6. Other Bank balances � in Lakhs) 

ParticuJars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Other Bank Deposits for original maturity more than 3 months up to 

12 rnonths 

Unclaimed dividend accounts 17.9� 21.90 

Earmarked bank deposits (refer note 16.1) 7.98 7.84 

Total 25.90 29.74 

16.1 The Company has pledged above deposits with bank as margin money for Bank Guarantee & Letter of Credit. 

17. Financial Assets - Others (? in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at31 st March, 

2023 2022

Security Deposits 

- Considered Good 0.45 0.45 

Total 0.45 0.45 

·18. Current Tax Assets (net) (� in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Current Tax Assets 
Refund Receivab'le 31.09 29.91 

Total 31.09 29.91 

19. Other Current Assets � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022

Unsecured, considered good 

Balance with Government Authorities 0.62 0.26 

Prepaid Expenses 9.35 3.48 

Advances to vendors 4.23 -

Advances to employee 0.97 1.18 

Others 1.58 2.60 

Total 16.75 7.52 
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20. EquilV Share Capital in a s �' L kh ) 

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 
March, 2023 March, 2022 

Authorised 
80,00,000 (P.Y.80,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 800.00 BOO.DO 

Total 800.00 800.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully: Paid ue
53,71,245 (P.Y. 53,71,245) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 537.12 537.12 
Total 537.12 537.12 

20.1 ReconciliatiQn of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting 
period is as under: 

Particulars No. of Shares Share Capital 
(� in Lakhs) 

As at 1st April, 202.1 53,71,245 537.12 
Additions/(Reductions) . . 

As at 31st March, 2022 53,71,245 537.12 
As at 1st April, 2022 53,71,245 537.12 
Additions/(Reductions) . . 

As at 31st March, 2023 53,71,245 537.12 

20.2 Details of Shareholder holding more than 5 percent share in Company: 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

No. of shares Extent of Holding No. of shares Extent of Holdini:i 
Abhishek V Gami 16,44,673 
Shruti A Gami 5,18,859 

20.3 Right, Preferences and restrictions attached to Shares 
Equity shares 

30.62% 16,44,673 30.62% 
9.66% 3,85,250 7.17% 

The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value oft 10/- per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is entitled to one vote per share. Any dividend declared by the Company shall be paid to each holder of 
Equity shares in proportion to the number of shares held to total equity shares outstanding as on that date. In the 
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive rem,aining assets of 
the Company after distribution of all Preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 

20.4 Details of shares held by Promoters 
As at 31 March 2023 

Particulars Promoter Name 
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year 

Equity Shares Abhishek V. Gami 16,44,673 

Equity Shares SllruU A. Gami 3,85,250 

As at 31 March 2022 

Particulars Promoter Name 
No. of shares at the 

beginning of the year 

Equity Shares Abhishek V. Gami 16,44,673 

Equity Shares Shruti A. Gaml 1,48,640 

21. Other Equity

Particulars 

Securities Premium 
General1 Reserve 
Capital Reserve 

Change during 
the year 

-
1,33,609 

Change during 
the year 

-

2,36,610 

Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income 
Retained Earnings 
Total 
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No. of shares at the % of Total % change during 
end of the year Shares the year 

16,44,673 30.62 0 

5,18,859: 9.66 2.49 

No. of shares at the % of Total % change during 
end of the year Snares u,e year 

16,44,673 30.62 0 

3,85,250 7.17 4.4 

(tin Lakhs) 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March, 2023 March, 2022 

127.16 127.16 
530.00 530.00 
29.06 29.06 

(53.06) (84.13) 
971.56 1,106.81 

1,604.72 1,708.90 



21.1 Particulars relating to Other Equity � in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Securities Premium (Refer Note No.21.2) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 127;16 127.16 
Addition/(Deduction) during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 127.16 127.16 

Capital Reserve (Refer Note No.21.3) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 29.06 29.06 

Addition/(Deductioil) during the year 
- -

Balance at the end of the year 29.06 29.06 

General Reserve (Refer Note No.21.4) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 530.00 530.00 
Addition/(Deduction) during the year - -

Balance at the end of the year 530.00 530.00 

Equity instruments carried through other comprehensive income (OCI) 
(Refer Note No. 21.5) 

Balance at beginning of year (84.13) (85.27) 
Remeasurement of Employee benefit plans 22.32 (1.06) 

Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments 2.44 2.43 

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 6.31 (0.23) 

Balance at the end of year (53.06) (84.13) 

Retained Earnings (Refer Note No. 21.6) 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,106.81 1,212.37 

Profit after tax for the year (135.25) (105.56) 

Balance at the end of the year 971.56 1,106.81 

Total 1,604.72 1,708.90 

21.2 Securities Premium : represents the amount received in excess of par value of .securlties i.e equity shares. 
Section 52 of Companies Act 2013 specify restriction and utilisation of security premium. 

21.3 Capital Reserve: represents the amount due to remissio11 of capital li:ability on one time settlement froi:n Financial 
Institution during the year 2001-02. 

21.4 General Reserve: represents the statutory reserve, this is in accordance with Indian Corporate Law wherein a 
portion of profit is apportioned to general reserve. Under Companies Act,1956 it was mandatory to transfer 
amount before a Company can declare dividend. However, under Companies Act, 2013, transfer of any amount 
to General reserve is at the discretion of the Company. 

21.5 Other Comprehensive Income Reserve: represents the balance in equity for the items to be accounted in Other 
Compreh.ensive Income. Other Comprehensive Income is classified into i) items that will not be reclassified to 
profit and loss, ii) items that will be reclassified to profit and loss. 

21.6 Retained Earnings: represents the undistributed profits of the Company. 
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22. Borrowings � in Lakhs) 

Pa.rt.iculars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March. 

2023 2022 
Secured • at amortised cost 
Term Loans from bank 1.20 3.16 

Total 1.20 3. 1 6

22.1 Term Loans from Banks consists of following� Cf in Lakhs) 

Term Loans 
Current Maturities Amount of 

of Loan Loan Outstanding 
HDFC Bank 1.91 3.11 
(Secured against vehicle) (1.71) {4.86) 

Previous year figure are in bracket. 

22.2 The terms of repayment of the above loans are as follows: 
No. of Instalments Amount of each 

Term Loans from Banks Date of Maturity Due after the Instalment 
Balance Sheet 

HDFC Bank 7 17,645· 

(Date of Maturity: 7th Oct 2024. The rate of Interest 
07-10-2024

is between 7.75% to 10.25%) (19) (17,,645)

23. Non Current Provisions Cf in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 
Provision for Employee benefits 

Gratuit y Provision 82.11 96.69 

Unavailed Leave and compensated absences 23.51 27.12 
Total 105.61 123.81 

24. Other Non- Current Liabilities � in Lakhs) 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

Particulars 2023 2022 

Other liabilities 0,07 0.07 
Total 0.07 0.07 

25. Borrowings � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 
Loan Repayable on Demand 
Secured 

Cash Credit from bank ' 339.48 212.36 

Current maturities of long term borrowings 1.91 1.71 

Total 341.40 214.06 
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" Cash Credit from State Bank of India is secured against Hypothecation of entire current assets of the company which 

includes stocks of Raw material, stock-in-process, finished goods, Receivables/Book debts. Company's Immovable 

properties form part ofthe Collateral security and the Directors have given theirPersonal Guarantee for the same. 

26. Trade Payables (t' in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 341.89 500.79 

Others 318.11 1.69 

Total 659.99 502.48 

26.1 There are no Micro and Small Enterprises to whom Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 

days as at 31st March, 2023. 

26.2 The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 

information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as below: 

� in Lakhs) 

Trade Payables -Total outstanding dues of Mjcro & Small Enterprises" 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 
341.89 500.79 supplier at the end of each Accounting Year 

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each 
Accounting Year; 

- -

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 
without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -

Interest accrued and remaihing unpaid as at of end of each Accounting Year - -

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, -

until such date when -the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise 

*Based on the confirmation from Vendors.

26.3 The Company has made payments to Micro and Small suppliers as per pre-negotiated terms but which are 

beyond the stipulated payment terms of 45 days as prescribed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006). Majority of Micro and Small suppliers have furnished their 

respective interest waiver letters to the Company, expressing unwillingness to charge interest on payments 

made by the Company after 45 days. The Company has not provided interest on such late payments. 
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26.4 Ageing Schedule for MSME and other Trade payables 
As at 31st March, 2023 (fin Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due, date of payment 
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 to 2'Years 2 to 3 years More than 3 Total 

Year1 years 

MSME: 

- Disputed Dues - - - - - . -

- Undisputed Dues - � 340.19 1.70 - . 341.89 

Other Trade payables -

- Disputed Dues - - - - - - -

- Unqisputed Dues - .. 318.09 0.02 - - 318.11 

Total - . 658.28 1.72 - - 659.99 

As at 31st March, 2022 � in Lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 to 2years 2 to 3 years More than 3 Total 

Year 1 years 

MSME: 

- Disputed Dues - - - - - - -

- Undisputed Dues - - 500.79 - - - 500.79 

Other Trade payables 

- Disputed Dues - - - - - - -

- Undisputed Dues - � 1.69 - - . 1.69 

Total - - 502.48 - - . 502-48

27. Other financial liabilities (fin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022

Unclaimed Dividend 17.93 21.89 

Salary Payable 26.35 22.87 

Other payable 1.17 1.98 

Payable to Employees 0.26 0.00 

Provision for expenses 23.14 60.26 

Total 68.85 106.99 

27.1 No amount i.s due for deposit in Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

28. Other Current Liabilities (tin Lakhs) 

As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 
Particulars 2023 2022

Liability for Statutory Payments 43.12 17.76 

Advance from Debtors 35.47 0.00 

Total 78.59 17.76 

29. Short Term Provisions (fin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, As at 31st March, 

2023 2022 

Provision for Employee benefits 
Gratuity Pmvision 10.59 12.57 

Unavailed Leave and compensated absences 4.21 3.64 

Total 14.79 16.21 
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30. Revenue from Operations � in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Sale of Products 
Domestic 3,951.37 3,611.89 
Export 5.90 1.75 
Total 3,957.26 3,613.64 

31. Other Income � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March. 2023 31st March, 2022 

Interest on deposit with bank and others 0.44 1.39 
Dividend Income 0.04 0.07 
Profit on sale of Property Plant & Equipment - 0.19 
Gain/Loss on Exchange differences - 0.03 
Sundry balance written back - 1.67 
Miscellaneous income 0.09 -
Total 0.57 3.34 

32. Cost of materials consumed � in Lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Consumption of Raw Materials: 

Opening Stock 280.08 321.94 

Add: Purchase 3,098.25 2,682.89 
Less: Closing Stock 542.86 280.08 

Total 2,835.48 2,724.75 

33. Changes in Inventories of finished goods, Stock- in- trade and work-in-progress � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Finislled goods: 
Opening Stock 221.81 213.90 
Less: Closing Stock 350.12 221.81 
Total (A) (128.31) (7.91) 

Work-in-progress: 
Opening Stock 766.14 620.79 

Less: Clbsing Stock 483.97 766.14 
Total (B) 282.18 (145.35) 
Total(A+B) 153.86 (153.26) 

34. Employee Benefits Expense � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 374.06 399.25 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 66.31 71.44 

Staff welfare expenses 33.67 50.23 
Total 474.05 520.92 
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35. Finance Costs � in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For tJ,e year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Interest on: 
Cash Credit Facilities 24.83 7.85 

Others 0.46 0.61 

Other borrowing costs 
Bank Charges 3.99 4.38 

Total 29.28 12.84 

36, Depreciation and amortisation expense (fin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment 58.17 65.55 
Amortisation of Intangible assets 2.03 1.30 
Total 60.20 66.84 

37. Other Expenses (fin Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Advertising/Sales promotion 17.22 10.12 
Commission to selling agents 0.94 1.11 

Consultancy/Professional fees 92.40 89.52 
Consumption of stores & spares parts 54.24 133.58 
Directors Sitting Fees 2.40 0.60 
Freight Inward 2.06 2.51 
Insurance 7.96 8.04 
Legal expenses 1.83 1,08 
Outward freight and handling charges 15.87 15, 15 
Packing Material 22.57 17.46 
Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 2.34 1.50 
Postage, telephone etc. 3.91 4.31 
Power and fuel 141,.83 134.65 
Printing and stationery 5.08 4.31 
Rates and taxes 4.80 5.65 
Rent 1.38 2.98 
Repairs and Maintenance 
- Buildings 6.74 7.45 
- Machinery 64.84 10.57 
- Others 14.48 12.51 
Rectification charges/Sample Testing Charges 4.18 1.34 
Subscription/Membership Fees 0.81 4.73 
Security Guard Exp. 20.91 20.99 

Travelling and conveyance 12.02 7,15 
Water Charges 6.64 4.06 
Sundry balance written off 1.28 -

Loss on sale of assets 0.04 -

Miscellaneous expenses * 8.84 7.36 

Total 517.62 508.73 

* None of the item individually accounts for more than z 1 O lakh or 1 % of revenue whichever is higher.
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(i) Payment to auditors has been classified below (Excluding Taxes):

'Particulars 

(a) Statutory audit services

(b) Tax audit and o'ther taxation services (to earlier auditor)

(c) Out-of-pocket expenses

Total 

38. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 on "Income Taxes"

A. Components of Tax Expenses/(lncome)

Particulars 

Profit or Loss Section 
Current years 
Earlier years 
Deferred Tax 

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 

B. Income tax relating to Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars 

Other Comprehensive Income Section 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefits Plans 
Equity instruments through other comprehensive income 

Income Tax Expense recognised in other Comprehensive Income 

(fin Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
2.13 1.00 

- 0.30 

0.22 0.20 

2.34 1.50 

(� In Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

- -

0.52 0.27 

22.07 41.45 

22.60 41.72 

(? in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st Match, 2023 31st March, 2022 

5.80 (0.28) 
0.50 0.51 

6.31 0.23 

C. Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense/(lncome) and Accounting Profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
applicable in India

(� in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March, 2023 ·31st March, 2022 

Profit before tax (112.65) (63.85) 

Corporate Tax Rate as per Income Tax Act. 1961 26.00% 26.00% 

Tax on Accounting Pront - -

Income tax expense recognised In the statemen\ of profit - -

39. Other Comprehensive· Income (t 1n Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
31.st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

A - Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss 

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (22.32) (1.06) 
Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income {2.44) 2.43 

(24.76) 1.37 

B - Items that will be reclassified to Profit & Loss. 
Income tax related to above (6.31) (0.23) 

(6.31) (0.23) 
Total (31.07) 1.14 
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NoteNo.40 

NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ST MARCH, 2023 

·1. Segment Reporting. 

The Company has only one business segment "Tungsten and Tungsten Carbide Products" as primary segment as 

required by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment" under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015. The 

secondary segment is geographical which is given as under: 

� In Lakhs) 

Sr. Sales & Services 2022-23 2021-22 No. 

a) Within India 3,951.37 3,611.89 

Outside India 5.90 1.75 

TOTAL 3,957.26 3,613.64 

Sr. Other Income 2022-23 2021-22 No. 

b) Within India 0;58 3.34 

Outside India 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL 0.58 3.34 

2. Related Party Disclosure:

Part. A- Name of Related Parties and description of their relationship areas under:

Name of Related Parties Nature of Relationship 

Mr. Abhishek V. Gami Managing Director 

Mr. 13alaram D. Markad (upto 30-05-2021) Chief Operating Officer 

Mr. Dhananjay D. Kanitkar Chairman 

Mr. Kishore D .. Sharma Director 

Mrs. Shruli A. Gami Directm 

Mr. Atul R. Garg Director 

Ms. Komal P Soni Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

Mr. Vaibhav P. Shah (Upto 05�09-2022) Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Vinay C. Sura (w.e.f. 14-02-2023) Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Kamlesh M. Shinde (Upto 03-09-2021) Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

Mr. Ashwin R. Master (Upto 30-09-2021) Chief Financial Officer 

M/s. United Wolfram (Converted into Pvt. Ltd Co. w.e.f. 25-11-2022) Entities over which Key Managerial Personal 

M/s. United Wolfram Pvt. Ltd. exercise significant influence 

(Partnership Firm converted. into Pvt. ltd Co. w.e.f. 25-11-2022) 
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Part. B - Disclosure of Transactions betwt?en the Company and Related Parties. 

Entities over which 

Nature of Transact1on Kev Management !(ey Managerlal 
Tot:il Personnel Personal exercise 

significant Influence 

Transaction durln" the vear 
Remuneration 42.SS - 42.55 

(52.86) - (52.85) 
Mr;Abhislwk v. Gami 34.63 . 34.63 

(34.63) . (34.63) 
Mr. Bairam D. Markad . . 

(6.95) - (6.95) 
Mr. AshWl11 R. Master - - -

{10.03) - (10.03) 
Mr. Kamlesh M. Sh Incle . . . 

(3.57) - {3.57) 
Mr. Vaibhav P. Shap 3.27 . ;3.27. 

(5.82) - (5.82) 
Mr; Vinav t Sura 0.99 . 0.99 

. - -

Ms. Koma/' P. Soni 3.66 - 3.66 

(1.84) . (1.84) 
Relmbursemeht for Maintaining Chalrman'·s Office 0.60 - 0.60 

(0.65) - (0.65) 
Mr. DhananJay D. l<anltkar 0.60 - 0.60 

(0.65) - (0,65) 
Sitting Fees 2.40 . 2.40 

(0.60) - (0.60) 
Mr:. Dhananjay D. Kanitkar 0.60 . 0.60 

(0.20) � (0.20) 
Mr Atul R Garg 0.60 - 0.60 

- -

Mrs. Shruti Garn! 0.60 - 0.60 

(0.20) - (0.20J 
Mr. Kishore·D. Sharma 0.60 . 0.60 

{0.20) - (0.20} 
Sales of Goods - 374,16 374.16 

- (436.92) (436.92) 
M/s United Wolfram . 241.63 241.63 

- {436.92) (436.92) 
M/1 United Wolfram Pvt. Ud. - 132.53 132,53 

- - -

Purchase of Goods . 2315.68 231.5.68 

- (2,382.66) {2,382.66) 
M/s United Wolfram - 1584.67 1584.67' 

- (2,382.66) (2,382.66) 
M/s United Wolfram PvL Ltd. - 731.01 731.01 

. - -

BaJance as on 31st March 
Remuneration Pavable 1.62 - 1.62 

(1.52) . (1.62) 
Mr, Abhishe� V. Gami 1.62 - 1.62 

(1.62) - (1.62) 
Salary Pay'ilble 0.77 . 0.77 

(0.65) - (0.65) 
Mr. Valbhav P. Shah - - -

(0.44) - !0.44) 
Mr. VI nay C Sura 0.51 . o.51 

. - -

Ms. Komar P. Soni 0.26 - 0.26 

(0.21) - (0.21) 

Balance Receivable . 16.55 16,55 

- (88.91) (88.91) 
M/s United Wolfram . - -

- (88.9:L) (88.91) 
M/s United Wolfram Pvt. ltd. - 16.55 16.55 

. - -

Balance Payable - 291.80 291.B0 

. (496.43) {496.43) 
M/s United Wolfram - - . 

- (496.43) (496.43) 
M/s United Wolfram Pvt. ltd. - 291.80 291.B0 

. - -

Arnount in bracket indicate previous year figure.s. 
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3 Contingent Liabilities and Commitment: - (To the extent not provided only) 

a) Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 
For the Year Ended 

Sr. No. 31st March, 2023 

a Guarantees I Letters of Credit Nil 

b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (Net of Advances)< Nil (P.Y. t Nil)

� in Lakhs) 

For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2022 

17.12 

4. As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosure of employee benefits as defined In the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) are given below: ({ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Expenses recognized for defined Contribution Plan 

Company's contribution to Provident Fund 32.59 34.93 
Company's contribution to Super Annuation Fund 11.88 14.71 

TOTAL 44A6 49.63 

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity 

All Employees who have completed five years or more of service are entitled to benefits of Gratuity. The 
Company has the Employee's Group Gratuity Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India which is a 
Defined Benefit Plan. 

The Employees Leave Encashment scheme, which is unfunded. 

Below table sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts recognized in 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022 being the respective Measurement dates: 

I>, Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligation : 

Cf in Lakhs) 

Gratuity 
Particulars As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 173.45 217.01 

Current Service Cost 12.57 13.37 

Interest Cost 1.0.48 11.22 

Components of Actuarial (gain) / loss 0.00 0.00 

Due to Change in financial assumptions (4.52) (7.32) 
Due to Change in demographic assumption (0.38) 0.00 

Due to experience adjustments (17.29) 8.11 

Past service cost 0.00 0.00 

Benefits paid (37.16) (68.94) 
Present Value of Defined Benefit obligation at the end of the year 137.14 173.45 

B) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the Fair Value of the Plan Assets : � in Lakhs) 

Gratuity 
Particulars Asat As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 64.18 112.75 

Return on plan assets including interest Income 3.72 5.09 
Contributions 13.71 15.28 

Benefits paid (37.16) (68.94) 

Actuarial gain / (loss) 0.00 0.00 

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 44.45 64.18 
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C) Expenses recognized in Profit and Loss:

Particulars 

Current Service Cost 
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and settlement 
Interest Cost 
Opening service cost and interest cost 
Net Cost recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss 

D) Expenses recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:

Particulars 

Components of actuarial gain / losses on obligations: 

Due to change financial assumptions 
Due to change in demographic assumptions 
Due to experience adjustments 

� in Lakhs) 

Gratuity 
Asat As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

12.57 
-

6.90 
-

19.47 

Gratuity 

Asat 

13.37 
-

5.85 

-

19.22 

(� in Lakhs) 

As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(4.52) (7.32) 
(0.38) -

(17.29) 8.11 

Return on Plan Assets excluding amounts included in Interest Income (0.14) 0.27 
Opening Provision to be made 
Net Cost recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

E) Assumptions used to determine the Defined Benefit Obligations:

Particulars 

Mortality rate 
Discount rate (per annum) 
Expected rate of Return on Plan Assets (per annum) 
Expected rate of increase in Salary (per annum) 
Expected Average remaining. wor,king lives of 
Employees (Years) 

- -

(22.32) 1.06 

Gratuity 
Asat As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

0.09% to 1.12% 0.09% to 1; 12% 
7.30% 6.00% 

- -

8.00% 8.00% 
10.00% at 5.00% at 

younger age and younger age and 
2.00% at older age 1.00% at older age 

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, 

promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. 

The expected rate of return on plan assets in determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the 

composition of Plan assets held, assessed risks, historical results of return on plan assets and the Company's policy 

for plan assets management 
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F) Sensitivity Analysis:
Particulars Change in Assumption Effeot on Gratuity obligation 

For the year ended 31st March 2023 ({ in Lakhs 
Discount Rate 0.50% 133.60 

-0.50% 140.88 
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% 140.66 

-0.50% 133.84 
Withdrawal rate W.R. X 110% 137.17 

W.R. x90% 137.11 
For the year ended 31st March 2022 
Discount Rate 0.50% 168.60 

-0.50% 178.61 
Salary Growth Rate 0.50% 177.89 

-0.50% 169.24 
Withdrawal rate W.R. X 110% 173.40 

W.R. x90% 173.48 

Sensitivity analysis is performed by varying a single parameter while keeping all other parameters unchanged. 
Sensitivity analysis fails to focus on the interrelationship between underlying parameters. Hence, the results may 
vary if two or more variables are changed simultaneously. 

The method used' does not indicate anything about the likelihood of change if any parameter and the extent of the 
change if any. 

G) History of Experience adjustments is as follows:

Particulars 
For the year ended 31st March 2023 
Plan Liabilities - (loss) 1 gain 
Plan Assets- (loss)/ gain 

For the year ended 31st March 2022 

Plan Liabilities - (loss)/ gain 

Plan Assets- (loss)/ gain 

H) Estimate of Expected Benefit Payments:

Particulars 
1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 
1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 

1st April', 2025 to 31st March, 2026 

1st April, 2026 to 31st March, 2027 
1st April, 2027 to 31st March, 2028 
1st April, 2028 to 31st March, 2029 and onwards 

I) Statement of Employee Benefit Provision:

Particulars 

Fair Value of Plan Assets 
Present Value of Obligation 

Opening Balance 
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 
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(< in Lakhs) 
Gratuity 

137.14 

{44.45) 

173.45 

(64.18) 

({ in Lakhs) 
Gratuity 

22.96 
14.29 

9.81 

34.92 
31.26 

43.50 

� in Lakhs} 
Gratuity 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

(44.45) (64.18) 
137.14 173.45 

- � 
92.69 109.26 



J) Current and Non-Current provision for Gratuity:

Particulars 

Current 
Non-Current 
Opening Balance 
Total 

K) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability:

Particulars 

Opening provision in books of accounts 
Employee Benefit Expense - Table C 
Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income 
Contributions to plan assets 
Closing provision in books of accounts 

� in Lakhs} 

Gratuity 

As at As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

10.59 12.57 
82.11 96.69 

0.00 0.00 
92�69 109.26 

(� in Lakhs) 

Gratuity 
As at As at 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 
109.26 104.26 
19.47 19.22 

(22.32) 1.06 
(13.71) (15.28) 

92.69 109.26 

L) Gratuity payable as per revised accounting Ind AS 19 & actuarial valuation submitted by independent actuaries
difference of fair market value of defined plan & present value of defined plan has been provided in other
comprehensive income amounting to Rs. 22,32,245/- including past service cost, interest cost and liability of earlier
year and difference in actuarial liability including service cost and interest cost for the year 31.03.2023.

5. In accordance with Ind AS • 33, "Earning Per Share" the Basic and Diluted EPS have been calculated as

under:

(tin Lakhs) 

Particulars Asat As at 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022 

Profits available to equity shareholders (tin Lakhs) (135.25) (105.56) 

Weighted Average Number of equity shares used as 
denominator for calculating Basic EPS 5,371,245 5,371,245 
Weighted Average Number of equity shares used as 
denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 5,371,245 5 371 245 

Earnings Per Share of< 10 each 

Basic (int) (2.52) (1.97) 

Diluted ( in t) (2.52) (1.97) 
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6. Financial Instruments

i) Fair value measurement hierarchy: � In Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 

Carrying Level of input used in 

amount Level 1 Level2 Level3 
Financial assets 

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss - - - -

Mutual Funds - - - -

At FVTOCI 

Investment in Equity instruments 13,26 - 13.26 -

Investment in Debt instruments - - - -

At Amortised cost 

Trade Receivables 1,042.45 - - ·-

Cash and cash equivalents 6.11 - - -

Bank balances other than above 25.90 - - -

Other asset 47.84 - - -

Total 1,135.55 - 13.26 -

Cf in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2023 

Carrying Levelofinputusedin 
amount LeveJ 1 Level2 Level3 

Financial liabilities 

Trade Payables 659.99 - - -

Borrowings 342.60 - - -

Other Financial liabilities 45.70 - - -

Total 1,048.29 - - -

� in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 

Carrying Levelofinputusedin 
amount Level1 Level2 Level3 

Financial assets 

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss - -

Mutual Funds - -

At FVTOCI 

Investment in Equity instruments 10.82 - 10.82 -

Investment in Debt instruments -

- -

At Amortised cost 

Trade Receivables 1,040.86 -

Cash and cash equivalents 1.83 -

Bank balances other than above 29.74 - . 

. 

Other assets 29.18 - -

Total 1,112.43 - 10.82 -

Financial liabilities 

Trade Payables 502.48 -

Borrowings 217.22 - -

Other Financial liabilities 25.31 -

lotal 745.01 - 0.00 -
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Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity 

instruments and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of ;;ill equity instruments which are traded in the 

stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the 

closing NAV. 

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation 

techniques which maxlmize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific 

estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included In 

level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in 

level 3. There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. The Company's policy is to recognize transfers 

into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels atthe end of the reporting period. 

} Valuation technique used to determine fair value 

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 

The use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 

The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using NAV. 

Valuation of unquoted equity shares is done by external valuation agency. 

Changes in Level 2fairvalue are analysed at the end of each reporting period. 
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7. Financial Risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

Credit risk, 

Liquidity risk, and 

Market risk 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk controls and to moriitor risks. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company monitors compliance with the 
company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 

i} Credit risk :

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers,
deposit and other receivables, Credit risk is managed through continuous monitoring of receivables and follow
up of overdues.

Investments

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in lrquid securities and onl'y with
counterparties that have a good credit rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance
by these counter parties, and does not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry
sector or specific country risks.

Trade receivables 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, 
demographics of the customer, default risk of the industry and country in which the customer operates, Credit 
risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits, and continuously monitoring the 
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

The Company has used expected credit loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, 
the Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes 
into account external and internal risk factors and historical data of credit losses from various customers. 

(� in Lakhs} 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

a Balance at the beginning of the year 1,043.45 1,041.86 

b Provision made during the year 1.00 1..00 

C Provision reversed during the year - -

d Balance at the end of the year 1,042.45 1,040.86 

Other than trade and other receivables, the Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired. 

Ii) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligation as they fall due. The 
Company ensures that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal 
and stressed condition. 

Maturities of FinanciaJ Liabilities 

The table herewith analyse the Company's Financial Liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturities for: 

The amount disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, Balance dues within the 12 
months equal there carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities: 
� in Lakhs) 

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Tota·1 

As at 31st March, 2023 
Non-derivatives 

Other Financial Liabilities 45.45 - 45.45 
Borrowings 341.40 1.20 342.60 
Trade payables 659.99 - 659.99 
Total Non-derivative liabilities 1,046.84 1.20 1048.04 

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total 
As at 31st March, 2022 
Non-derivatives 

Other Financial Liabilities 25.31 - 25.31 

Borrowings 214.06 3.16 217.22 
Trade payables 502.48 - 502.48 

Total Non-derivative liabilities 741.85 3.16 745.01 

Iii) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and other 

price risk such as commodity risk, Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments 

including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. 

Price Risk: 

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due its investment in equity instruments and equity & debt 

mutual fund. The price risk arises due to unascertainity about the tutu re market value of these investments. 

Management Policy 

The Company maintains its portfolio in accordance with framework set by risk management policies duly 

monitored by competent professionals. 

8. Capital management

The Company's capital management objectives are:

To ensure the Company's ability to continue as going concern; and 

To provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimization of debts and equity balance. 

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as 

presented on the face of the Financial Statements. Tne Company's objective for capital management is to 
maintain an optimum overall financial structure. 

(fin Lakhs) 

For the year ended As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022 

Debt (includes non-current, current borrowings and 342.60 217.22 
current maturities of long term debt) 

Less : Cash and cash equiva·lents 6.11 1.83 

Net Debt 336.49 215.39 

Total Equity 2,141.47 2,246.03 

Net debt to total equity ratio 0.16 0.10 
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9. Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Companyts Financial Statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the

accompanying disclosures, and1hedisclosure of contingent liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. lh particular, 

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 

that have the most significant effect oh the amounts recognized in the Financial Statements is included in these 

notes. 

0. The Company has working capital borrowing from banks on the basis of security of current asset. The Company files

Quarterly returns with the Bank. The Company had submitted preliminary Quarterly Returns initially which have been

resubmitted to the Bank and which are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company

11. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending a9ainst the

company for holding any Benami property.

12. The Company does :not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

period.

13. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the period/year.

14. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any otherperson(s) or entity(ies), including foreign

entities (lntermediaries)with the understandingthatthe Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest ,rn other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of

the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

15. The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) o entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities (Funding Party)

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) thatthe company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

of the Funding Party (Ultimate8eneflciaries)or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

16. The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or

surveyor any other relevant provisions of the Income TaxAct, 1961.

17. The Company does not have any Immovable Property whose title deeds are not held in the name of Company.

18. The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution orother lender.

19. The previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to make it comparable with the current year.
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20. The Company has sought balance confirmations from trade receivables and trade payables, wherever such balance

confirmations are received by the Company, the same are reconciled and appropriate adjustments if required, are

made in the books of account.

21. The Company does not have any transaction with struck-off Companies.

2.2.. Approval of Financial Statements 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th May, 2023 

23 Disclosures on Financial Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-23 

Current ratio (in limes) Current Assets Current Liabilities 

Debt- Equity Ratio (In times) Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 

Debt Service Coverage ,Earnings for debt Debt service : Interest 
ratio (in times) service : Net profit after & Lease PaYme11ts + 

!aJ<es + Non-cash Principal Repayments 
operating expenses 

Return on Equity ratio (%) Net Profits after taJ<es Average Shareholder's 
- Preference Divtdend Equity 

Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 
(no. of day's) 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Net credit sales = Gross Average Trade 
( no. of days) credit sales • sales Receivable 

return 

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net credit purchases = Average Trade Payables 
v,o. of days) Gross credit purchases 

- purchase return 

Nel Capital Turnover Ratio Net sales = Total. sales Working capital = 
On times) - sales return Current assets 

Current liabilities 

Nel Profit ratio (%) Net Profit Net sales = TOia! sales 
- sales return 

Return on Capita! Employed (%) Earnings before interest Capital Employed = 
and ta�es Tangible Net Worth + 

Total Debt + Deferred 
Ta� Liability 

Return on Investment (o/o) Jnterest (Finance Income) Investment 

As per our report of even date attached 

For K C Mehta & Co LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Chhaya M. Dave 
Partner 
Membership No. 100434 

Place : Vadodara 
Date : May 29, 2023 

Ohananjay D t<anitkar 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director 
DIN: 03523774 

Vlnay C, Sura 
Chief Financial Officer 
PAN : AGTPS9446B 
Place : Ankteshwar Date : May 29, 2023 
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2.47 

0.16 

-0.99 

-6.16 

170.32 

3.80 

5.33 

2.23 

·0.03 

-0.03 

-0.02 

31-Mar-22 Variance In % Reason for variance 

3.14 -21.21 No Significant Change 

0.10 0.65 The change is mainly 
d1..1e lo 1..1sance of 
Cash credit limit in 
current year vis-a:-vls 
nil usance in las-I 
year: 

0.93 -2.06 Increase in Loss & 
Interest cost. 

-4.59 34.21 Improvement in ratro 
due to increase in 
sales as compare to 
Previous Year. 

179.08 -0.05 No Significanl Change 

4.14 -0.08 No Signiflcanl Change 

5.07 0.05 
No Significanl Change 

1.95 0.15 
No Significant Change 

-0.03 17.00 No Significant Change 

-0•.02 62.06 Change In ratio is di.le 
to Increase Tn EBIT 
as compared ,to 
previous year. 

0.05 -67.17 Change in ratlo due to 
lower interest Income 
as compare to Previous 
year. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Abhishek V. Gaml 
Managing Director 
DIN: 07570948 

Komal P. Soni 
Company Secretary 
M. No. � A66843



Form ISR-1 
(-SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03, 2021 on Common and Simpl ified Norms for 

processing investor's service request by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Nomination) 

REQUEST FOR REGISTERING PAN, KYC DETAILS OR CHANGES/ UPDATION THEREOF 
[For Securities {Shares/ Debentures/ Bonds, etc.) of listed companies held in physical for m] 

A. I/ We, request you to Register/ Change/ Update the following (Tick relevant box) Date 

□ PAN □ Signature □ Mobile Number

□ Bank details □ Registered Address □ E-mail address

B. Security and KYC Details [ to be fil led in by the First Holder ] 
Name of the Issuer Company Folio No(s) I 
Face value of Securities Number of Securities I 
Distinctive number of From To 

Securities (Optional) 

E-mail Address

Mobile Number 

C. I/We are submitting documents as per Table below {tick as relevant, refer to the instructions):

I I 

Name(s) of the Security holder(s) in Capital as per PAN PAN PAN Linked to 
Copies of PAN of all the Holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed with this Form. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Note: D PAN shall be valid only if it is l inked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any other date as may be specified by CBDT.
To know the status of your PAN Linked to Aadhaar check on this link: https://www.incometax.gov.in/iec/foportal 

Bank Account Details of First Holder 
Name of the Bank & IFSC I Branch 

Aadhaar -Y/N 
Tick any one[ l □

Yes I No 

Yes I No 

Yes I No 

Yes I No 

BankA/c No. I Tick any one[ -] Acct type □ Savings 
□ NRO □ NRE □ Any other [ 

□current
. . . .  Note: Ongmal cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder 1s mandatory, failing which first secunty holder shall submit copy of bank 

passbook/ statement attested by the Bank for registering the Bank Account details. 

I Demat Account Number 16 digit DP/CL [ 
Also provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the Depository Participant. 
Authorization: I/ We authorise you (RTA) to update the above PAN and KYC details in my/ our above folio(s) (use Separate Annexure if extra
space is required) in which I / we are the holder(s). [ stri ke off what is not applicable ] 
Declaration: All the above facts and documents enclosed are true and correct.

First Holder Joint Holder - 1 Joint Holder - 2 Joint Holder - 3 

I 
ii 

II 
PIN 

Note: If the address mentioned above differs from the address registered with the Company, you are requested to record the new address by submitting the 
documents as specified in point (3) overleaf. 

Pg: 1/2 



I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick as relevant, refer to the instructions): 

No. Document/Information/Details Instruction/Remark 

PAN copies of all the holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed. 

1 □ PAN of (all) the (joint) holder(s) 
PAN shall be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any date as 

may be specified by the CBDT. For Exemptions / Clarifications on PAN, please 

refer to Objection Memo as specified in SEBI circular. 

2 Demat Account Number 
Provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the 

□ 
Depository Participant. 

Provide self attested copy of any ONE of the documents, issued by a Govt. Authority, 

only if there is change in the address; 

□ Client Master List {CML) of your Demat Account, provided by

the Depository Participant.

□ Valid Passport/ Registered Lease or Sale Agreement of Residence/

Driving License/Flat Maintenance Bill*

□ Utility bills like Telephone Bill (only land line), Electricity bill or

Gas bill - Not more than 3 months old.

□ Identity card (with Photo) / document with address, issued by

3 Proof of Address of the first Holder Central/State Government and its Departments, Statutory /

Regulatory Authorities, Public Sector Undertakings, Scheduled

Commercial Banks, Public Financial Institutions.

□ For FIi / sub account, Power of Attorney given by FIi / sub-

account to the Custodians (which are duly notarized and / or

apostilled or consularised) that gives the registered address

should be taken.

□ The proof of address in the name of the spouse*

* Kindly provide additional self-attested copy of Identity Proof of the holder/

claimant. 

Provide the latest copy of the bank statement with details of bank name, branch, 

4 □ Bank details
account number and IFSC or Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of 

first holder. Alternatively, Bank details available in the CML as enclosed will be 

updated in the folio. 

5 □ E-mail address
As mentioned on Form ISR-1, alternatively the E-mail address available in the 

CML as enclosed will be updated in the folio. 

6 □ Mobile
As mentioned on Form ISR-1, alternatively the mobile number available in the 

CML as enclosed will be updated in the folio. 

7 Specimen Signature 
Provide banker's attestation of the signature of the holder(s) as per Form ISR - 2 

□ and Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder. 

Submit Form(s) as per any ONE of the following options. 

□ SH-13 For First Time Nomination

8 Nomination □ SH-14 For Cancellation or Variation in Nomination

□ SH-14 and ISR-3 For Cancellation of Nomination and to "Opt-Out"

□ ISR-3 To "OPT-Out" of Nomination or if No-Nomination is required

Note: SEBI vide its circul ars SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03, 2021 and 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021 has notified common and simplified norms for processing 
investor's service request by the Registrars and Transfer Agents (RTAs) and norms for furnishing Permanent Account Number ("PAN"), 
Know Your Client ("KYC") details and Nomination. Investors shall submit Form ISR-1 to Link lntime India Private Limited for all requests 
to register PAN, KYC details or changes / update thereof for securities held in physical mode. 

Pg: 2/2 



CERTIFICATE 

Management system as per 

ISO 9001 : 2015 

The Certification Body T0V NORD CERT GmbH hereby confirms as a result of the audit, 
assessment and certification decision according to ISO/IEC 17021-1:2015, that the organization 

RAPICUT CARBIDES LIMITED 

119, GIDC Industrial Area, 
On National Highway BOM - AHM, 
Ankleshwar - 393 002, 
Gujarat, 
India 

® 

operates a management system in accordance with the requirements of ISO 9001 : 2015 and will be assessed 
for conformity within the 3 year term of validity of the certificate. 

Scope 

Manufacture, Sale & Export of Tungsten Metal,Tungsten Carbide, 
Fused/Cast Tungsten Carbide, Cobalt, Ready to Press {RTP) Powder 
and all Type of Cemented/Sintered Tungsten carbide Products. 

Certificate Registration No.04 100 990693 

Audit Report No.2.5-0062/1999 

Certification Body 

at T0V NORD CERT GmbH 

T0V NORD CERT GmbH Am T0V 1 

TUV India Pvt. Ltd., 801, Raheja Plaza - 1, L.B.S. Marg, 

Akkred itie ru ngsstel le 
D·ZM·l2007•01·00 

Valid from 05.08.2023 

Valid until 04.08.2026 

Initial certification 02.06.1999 

Mumbai, 12.06.2023 

45307 Essen www.tuev-nord-cert.com 

Ghatkopar (W), Mumbai - 400 086, India www.tuv-nord.com/in 



Rapicut Carbides Limited 
Since 1977 

Registered Office: 119, GIDC Industrial Area, Ankleshwar- 393 002. Gujarat (India) 

Tel/ Land line: (+91) 75730 22016, 762200 2203 

www.rapicutcarbides.com I www.rapicutcarbides.in 
info@rapicutcarbides.com I investors@rapicutcarbides.com 

Mumbai I Pune I Ahmedabad I Kolkata I Chennai I Delhi I Bengaluru 
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